Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

To: Councillor Milne, Convener; Councillor Finlayson; Vice Convener; and Councillors
Boulton, Cooney, Cormie, Corall, Crockett, Dickson, Greig, Jaffrey, Lawrence,
Malik, Jean Morrison MBE, Nicoll, Jennifer Stewart, Sandy Stuart and Thomson .

And all other members of the Council

Town House,
ABERDEEN 9 March 2016

PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE -
PRE-DETERMINATION HEARING

The Members of the PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
are requested to meet in Council Chamber - Town House on WEDNESDAY, 16 MARCH
2016 at 9.30 am.

Would Members please be reminded that we will be meeting at the Town House
Reception prior to the site visit.

FRASER BELL
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

BUSINESS

Site Visit

2 Land at Bay of Nigg, Coast Road/Greyhope Road, Torry - National Development
Comprising Construction of New Infrastructure to Facilitate the Creation of a New
Deep Water Harbour (Pages 3 - 134)

Planning Reference — 151742

The documents associated with this application can be found at:-
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=151742

Case Officer — Gareth Allison

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.qgov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Mark
Masson on 01224 522989 or email mmasson@aberdeencity.gov.uk or Lynsey McBain on
01224 522123 or email lymcbain@aberdeencity.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 2

Pre-Determination Hearing

LAND AT BAY OF NIGG, COAST ROAD / GREYHOPE ROAD, TORRY

NATIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMPRISING CONSTRUCTION OF NEW INFRASTRUCTURE TO
FACILITATE THE CREATION OF A NEW DEEP WATER HARBOUR, INCLUDING NEW ROADS,
PARKING AND MEANS OF ACCESS, TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION AND FABRICATION AREAS
AND OTHER ASSOCIATED DEVELOPMENT WHICH MAY INCLUDE PUBLIC REALM AREAS,
PATHS, LIGHTING AND SIGNAGE.

For: Aberdeen Harbour Board

Application Type: Advert : Section 34 -Proj. Pub. Concern
Planning Permission in Principle Advertised on: 04/11/2015

Application Ref.: P151742 Hearing Date: 16/03/2016

Application Date: 04/11/2015 Full Council Date: 11/05/2016

Officer : Gareth Allison Community Council : No response

Ward: Torry/Ferryhill (Y Allan/A Donnelly/J
Kiddie/G Dickson)

Page 3



PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report provides information for the Pre-Determination Hearing required to be
held for a proposal falling within the category of ‘national development’.

The purpose of the hearing is for elected members to hear the views of the applicant,
and if requested those who have made representations on the application, prior to the
application being determined at a future meeting of the Full Council. There is, therefore,
no evaluation of the proposal and no recommendation.

This report will be augmented by presentations made at the hearing.

DESCRIPTION
Summary

The Aberdeen Harbour Expansion Project (AHEP) is subject to three separate
consenting processes:

= Harbour Revision Order (HRO)
= Marine Licences (ML)
= Planning Permission in Principle (PPiP)

The Role of Aberdeen City Council

ACC is the consenting Planning Authority for this PPiP application, which has been
submitted by Aberdeen Harbour Board (AHB).

Members should however be aware that the physical construction of the harbour and the
impacts on the marine environment are considered under the HRO and ML by Scottish
Ministers, via Transport Scotland and Marine Scotland respectively, and are not subject
to the determination of this application. Aberdeen City Council (ACC) is a statutory
consultee for both of these processes.

Application Description

This application for PPIiP relates specifically to all inland non-harbour related
development components that are located outwith the HRO boundary and are not
subject to permitted development rights. This includes the construction of new
infrastructure to facilitate the creation of the harbour itself, including new/realigned roads,
temporary construction areas and off-road cycle track improvements.

The application site comprises a 30ha linear stretch of inland coastline at Nigg Bay that
includes:

= Land to the north of the Greyhope Road/Coast Road/St Fitticks Road junction
(beyond the informal golf practice area);

= Land to the north of Greyhope road, until it meets Balnagask Golf Course;

= Land directly to the east of St Fitticks Church and St Fitticks Community Park;

= The northern Girdleness headland, including Walker Park;

Page 4



= The southern Gregness headland, including parts of Loirston Country Park
(excluding the Gregness coastguard station and communications masts);

= Land directly to the east of the Coast Road (south of the Nigg Wastewater Treatment

= Plant to the Coast Road Bridge); and

= Land to the east side of the railway, travelling south until near the junction of the
Coast Road and Hareness Road.

RELEVANT HISTORY
Nigg Bay Development Framework

The Nigg Bay Development Framework (NBDF) sits within the context of the presently
adopted and future Local Development Plans, and will be considered as interim planning
advice under the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 until it is adopted as
Supplementary Guidance under the Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2016. It takes
account of relevant planning policies and other proposals, including the adopted
Aberdeen Harbour Development Framework, the Old Torry Masterplan Study (2003) and
the emerging City Centre Development Framework. The NBDF was reported to the
Communities, Housing and Infrastructure Committee on 20 January 2016, with a
recommendation to approve as Interim Planning Advice subject to necessary revisions.
Members upheld this recommendation, allowing the framework to be taken forward in
spring 2016 alongside the new Local Development Plan once the necessary revisions
have been completed.

Scoping Opinion

An Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) Scoping Opinion was issued to AHB on 10
January 2014 by Scottish Ministers’ Ports and Harbours Branch. This document
informed the current submission alongside responses received from other consultees
and stakeholders. Owing to the nature of the proposed development, AHB was required
to submit an EIA under the Environmental Impact Assessment (Scotland) Regulations
1999. In addition, a Habitats Regulation Assessment (HRA) was also required.

The Harbour Revision Order & Marine Licences

As noted above, construction of the new harbour would be consented under legislation
made by the Scottish Parliament via both the HRO and ML processes, administered by
Transport Scotland and Marine Scotland respectively, on behalf of Scottish Ministers.
As a statutory consultee on both, ACC is currently undertaking a period of negotiation
with AHB in an attempt to resolve a number of outstanding issues and concerns that
were raised during the formal consultation of the HRO and ML.

Planning Applications

This application for PPiP is currently pending, and is scheduled for presentation to Full
Council Committee on 11 May 2016.

PROPOSAL

For the avoidance of doubt, this application for PPP seeks consent only for the following
development components:

Page 5



Roads Realignment

The application proposes the realignment of the Coast Road, Greyhope Road and St
Fittick’s junction located to the north-west of the proposed harbour. The Coast Road to
St Fittick’s Road corridor would be realigned over a distance of approximately 280m to
enlarge the inside radius to a minimum of 175m. The corridor would also be widened in
order to enable safe access to the new harbour. Where there is potential for resurfacing
and verge works of existing road(s) to facilitate road improvements, this would be
discussed with ACC’s Roads Development Management Service and, if applicable,
would likely be the subject to further applications for Approval of Maters Specified in
Conditions (MSC).

Greyhope Road would be realigned over a distance of approximately 310m to enable a
repositioning further north from its current alignment. The road realignments would lead
to the Coast Road/St Fittick's Road/Greyhope Road junction being repositioned
approximately 150m north-west from its current location, which again would be subject to
detailed design approval at MSC stage.

Potential Temporary Construction/Site Establishment Areas:

Three potential temporary construction and site establishment areas have been
identified:

1. St Fitticks: north of the new Greyhope Road junction with St Fitticks Road and
directly west of the new Coast Road realignment and the northern section of the
proposed West Quay

2. Girdleness: land at Walker Park, parts of Greyhope Road and to the south of
Greyhope Road

3. Gregness: directly north and south of the proposed southern breakwater access
road on the southern headland, east of Coast Road

The purpose of these temporary areas is to enable the preparation/production of
materials used in the formation of the breakwaters, quays and piers etc. associated with
the construction of the wider AHEP. Final details would be identified and agreed with
ACC through the MSC process, and could include offices, welfare facilities, storage
and/or concrete batching facilities (or similar). Upon completion of construction works,
the areas used would be reinstated as agreed with ACC.

Off-road Cycle Path Improvements:

As part of this application the applicant also proposes the provision of a new off-road
section of cycle path to the east of the railway line, parallel to Coast Road between
Hareness Road and the railway bridge. Full details would be submitted and assessed by
way of MSC application.

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this application can
be viewed on the Council’s website at

http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref=151742

On accepting the disclaimer, enter the application reference quoted on the first page of
this report.

Page 6



PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION

The proposed development was the subject to pre-application consultation between the
applicant and the local community, as required for applications falling within the category
of national developments as defined in the ‘Hierarchy of Development’ Regulations. The
various consultation measures involved the following:

Submission of Proposal of Application Notice (PAN): July 2015

= |nformed ACC of AHB’s intention to submit PPiP;
= Set out proposed engagement strategy to be undertaken prior to PPiP submission

ACC Pre-Application Forum: October 2015

= Provided Members of the Planning Committee with an opportunity to view pre-
application details;

= AHB presented the proposed development to Members, and afforded opportunities
for Councillors to ask questions.

Public Notices (Local Newspapers): July 2015 and September 2015

= Public notice in local newspapers informing public of forthcoming PPIP;

= Provided details of the proposed development components associated within each
consenting regime (HRO, ML & PPP);

= Provided details relating to the consultation due to take place in September 2015 and
outlined how public feedback could be delivered

Public Consultation Exhibitions: September 2015

= Wednesday 16 September 2015 - Tesco, Wellington Road, Aberdeen

= Thursday 17 September 2015 - Union Square Shopping Centre, Aberdeen
= Wednesday 23 September 2015 - Tesco, Wellington Road, Aberdeen

= Thursday 24 September 2015 - Union Square Shopping Centre, Aberdeen

Community Councils Presentations: August — October 2015

=  Torry Community Council: 20 August 2015 & 15 October 2015
= Cove & Altens Community Council: 17 August & 26 October 2015

Radio Adverts — September 2015

= [nformative public adverts broadcast on local radio station: 12 September — 24
September

CONSULTATIONS

ACC Roads Development Management
Further details to enable a full evaluation are required in relation to:

= Existing and proposed drainage
= Further road specification details

Page 7



= Cycle route details
= Traffic Regulation Order requirements

No objection in principle to other matters subject to details being agreed at MSC stage.

ACC Environmental Health
No objections in principle subject to conditions

ACC Communities, Housing and Infrastructure (Flooding)
No observations received

Scottish Environment Protection Agency
No objections in principle subject to conditions

Scottish Natural Heritage
No objections in principle subject to conditions

Historic Scotland
No objections

Network Rail
No objections in principle subject to conditions

Scottish Water
No objections in principle subject to conditions

Community Council
No observations received

NB: ACC would formally consult with all statutory bodies on any final details submitted
through MSC applications.

REPRESENTATIONS

A total of 26 no. letters of representation have been received: 18 no. relating specifically
to this PPiP; and 8 no. referring specifically to the HRO and ML process (thus they not
relevant to this PPiP). Of the 18 no. which are relevant to this application; 1 no. was a
letter of support, whilst 17 no. raised objections to the proposed development. The main
areas of concern are:

Loss of land for road alterations

Loss of land for temporary construction areas
Direct and consequential impact on local business
Impact on existing roads / access / transportation
Road safety hazard / risk

Visual Impact

Light impact

Noise impact deriving from construction work

Air quality impact deriving from construction work
General impact on local environment

Loss of open space

Fragmentation of natural habitat

Incompatibility with existing uses

Page 8



PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT
National Planning Framework 3, 2014

The Scottish Government published National Planning Framework 3 (NPF3) on the 23
June 2014. NPF3 responds directly to capacity constraints at the existing harbour, and
the need to expand into new markets for the benefit of the city region and Scotland as a
whole, by identifying the expansion of Aberdeen Harbour as a National Development,
and Nigg Bay as the preferred development option. With the expansion established at
the top tier of the planning hierarchy, it follows that the strategic and local development
plan tiers should seek to facilitate and deliver this development.

Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan, 2014

The Aberdeen City and Shire Strategic Development Plan (SDP) identifies the harbour
as a key port in the National Renewables Infrastructure Plan, clarifying that its growth
should be accommodated to inform the next local development plan. A key objective of
the Plan is to grow and diversify the regional economy.

Aberdeen Local Development Plan, 2012

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning acts,
regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that determination
shall be made in accordance with the plan, as so far as material to the application,
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Aberdeen Local Development Plan 2012 (ALDP) promotes a general presumption in
favour of major and essential infrastructure projects where they can be suitably
accommodated. In particular, the following polices are of direct relevance:

Policy NE1 — Green Space Network: Where major infrastructure projects or other
developments necessitate crossing the Green Space Network, such developments shall
take into account the coherence of the network. In doing so measures shall be taken to
allow access across roads for wildlife and for access and outdoor recreation purposes.

Policy NE2 — Green Belt: Exceptions to green belt development restrictions apply where
the proposal relates to essential infrastructure which cannot be accommodated other
than in the green belt.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan, 2016

The Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan (PALDP) was approved for
submission for Examination by Scottish Ministers at the meeting of the Communities,
Housing and Infrastructure Committee of 27 October 2015. It constitutes the Council’s
settled view as to what should be the content of the final plan and will be a material
consideration in the determination of planning applications, along with the adopted
ALDP. The PALDP specifically recognises the significant pressures for expansion which
cannot be met within the existing site. Drawing from NPF3, the site is identified in the
PALDP as an Opportunity Site (OP62) for a new harbour development.

Page 9



Members should note that the Reporter appointed to examine the proposed plan will be
aware the harbour has been identified as a national project within NPF3. The following
policies are directly applicable to this site, and substantially reiterate the policy position
of the current ADLP policies noted above:

= Policy NE1 — Green Space Network
= Policy NE2 — Green Belt

THE NEXT STEPS

Following the hearing the application will be assessed rigorously in terms of planning
policy, the details of the proposal and the economic, environmental, amenity and traffic
impacts. This will be reflected in a subsequent report which will be prepared for
consideration by the Full Council in due course. The report will also take into account all
written comments made by the consultation bodies and members of the public and all
matters raised at the hearing.

It should be noted again for clarity that this application for PPiP and its evaluation are
restricted to the impacts of the proposed development:

1. Roads realignment;
2. Temporary construction / site establishment areas; &
3. Off-road cycle path improvements

Whilst inter-related in terms of the AHEP, the remaining elements of the AHEP (i.e.
physical harbour components and marine elements) will be assessed and consented
through the HRO and ML processes to be determined by Transport Scotland and Marine
Scotland respectively.

Daniel Lewis
Development Management Manager

Page 10



Mrs Betty Lyon
38 Tullos Crescent
Torry

Aberdeen

ABII1 8JW

1 am a Torry resident and 1 strongly object to the New Harbour Proposal for the following
reasons:

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There i1s limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry
people has been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not
help this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the
health and wellbeing of the local community. In addition, a recent rescarch paper® provides
evidence that accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly
lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource
for local people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have
its own large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get
away from the hustle and bustle and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than
the noises of industry, traffic and other people.

The “land take™ associated with this development scems to have been creeping further and
further up St Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and
what land could be at potential risk in the future as | strongly feel that this has not be clearly
communicated. Many people seem completely unaware that the golf practice area would
virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development
of the area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green
space, such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with
natural environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain
bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if the
new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour
Board) little work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed
by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an
unacceptable oversight.

Page 11



For generations. people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay

of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in
the future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security
fencing? The harbour board have been asked about this previously at meetings of Tomry
Community Council. but have yet to provide an adequate response and this aspect does not
appear to feature in their planning application.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

I am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction
and during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club
to its north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a
three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners™, but also
frequently used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this development goes
ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this
route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic, significantly
worsens the risk of accidents.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have
to negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays
and potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan
if for example, the bridge is damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will
HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, |
would ask that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by
families and I feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the
farm, particularly young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic
routed this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional
residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue.
Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and
Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to
these congestion problems and I cannot see an easy solution.

During construction and operation, I would request that strict mitigation measures are employed
to ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that
40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these
take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure
as described above.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the

Coast Road for 18 months. I find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using
the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back)

Page 12



which is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single camageway in places due to landslips
undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this already weakened road.
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the
section of Greyhope Road left open does fzil, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access
the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

NUISAN(_,‘ES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT
Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there is noticeable noise from this, particularly from
vehicle reversing alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise.
This is especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local
residents. As mitigation, | would strongly suggest working hours (both construction and
operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends to give
local residents some respite. In addition, I would request that robust measures be taken to
minimise the amount of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping
measures or improved soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

1 would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no
smell and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the
odours from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from
unpleasant odours. This harbour should not deal in any matenals that have the potential to
create unpleasant odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that
smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently
amended their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee
which “traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. 1 do not believe that this microclimate
effect has been explored in the harbour board’s EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this
effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the
very least to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. I would also
like to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected,
active areas of the harbour rather than being “always on™?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City
Council and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to
improve its appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

Page 13



I hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay
forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of
natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy
(SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement. SPP, paragraph 6 reads:
“Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and proportionate.
Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged™.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are
taken with communities ...”

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local
population docs not have English as their first language, but not one document has been
produced in an altemative language, effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals
from the planning process. There are no statements in other languages on any of the documents
advising how people can source copies in their native language either. 1 feel that this is
discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a matter of
urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet drop has been carried out to
local homes — I consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet
drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and
Scottish Water (upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent
for this.

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is
not circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate
and meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk
about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given
ample notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead.
I consider this lack of engagement with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is
not to allow development at any cost”.

I strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local
community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for
this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately
$40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, I believe that the economic case needs to be
revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed
it could well be a “white elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

Page 14



The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the
community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale. however we have been
given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting
information that describes ... the implications of the proposal”. The images of the development
that have been circulated in the local press are in my view, misleading. They seem to disguise
the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks. welfare
blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a new harbour. This must be rectified
as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of this
development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November. so
the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four
volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, I feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour
board arrange a public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the development. To date,
this has not been done and I consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the
implications of these proposals without having the chance to discuss them meaningfully? |
would strongly recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a
true debate on the development. I think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development
costing £320 million. '

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not
result in a deficit of that provision within the local area ...”

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural
space in the community. I feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

Page 15



Dear Sir/Madam
BAY OE NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Tomy and would like to object fo the proposal to build a new
harbour in the Bay of Nigg Aberdeen. My reasons for objecling are listed below.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible 1o the public. The health
of Torry peopie has been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this
development will not help this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible,
green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local community. In
addition, a recent research paper* provides evidence that accessible, green spaces
also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

| mﬂaydﬂggmmsunmwmmwwﬂeamm accessible leisure
mwmefabmlpeoplewhmmnnmberephoed.mﬂ:emmwamsofmecﬂy.
Torry does not have its own large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few
areas in Tormy where you can get away from the hustie and bustle and hear nothing
but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of industry, traffic and
other people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping
further and further up St Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what
land will be lost and what land could be at potential risk in the future as | strongly feel
that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem completely unaware
that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be
taken over as a temporary consiruction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome
development of the area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across
more of Torry’s green space, such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close
proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The
overwhelming message from residents was that we needed attractions to draw
people into the area (at that time an aguarium with adjacent restaurant were
proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been leamed
(or remembered?).

I am not against all development, but am against development that | consider
unsustainable and disproportionate. For example, | fully support the Greyhope Bay
project which envisaged a visitor centre to view the dolphins with an atiached coffee
shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of development that should be
encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

Page 16



COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, bisdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers,
mountain bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite fiyers etc. This area will be
completely inaccessible if new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact
Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to have been
undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL poputation
who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an unacceptable
oversighti.

For generations, people with local connections have scatiered their loved one'’s
ashes in the Bay of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will
people pay their respects in the future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded
by nine and a half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have been asked
about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to
provide an adequate response and this aspect does not appear fo feature in their
planning application.

{ am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction
areas to four play areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground,
basketball court and playpark) in St Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply
demonstrated that children are much more susceptible to air pollution than adults
and | find it unacceptable that construction sites (which are expected to generate a
lot of dust) are to be sited next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note
that some of the areas earmarked for construction sites have been recently planted
PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the
construction and during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay
Golf Club to its north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for
pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and
rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people
accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who
would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure walk

Page 17



of accident. '

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast
Road and have to negofiate the tight bends at fhe railway bridge — this will lead to
further congestion, delays and potentially damage to the bridge {either from overuse
or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge is damaged by a
heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGY movement be suspended
untii the bridge is declared safe again? For safely reasons, | would ask that no
harbour HGVs would be pemmitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is
frequented by families and | feel that an increase in traffic will be defrimental o the
safety of visitors to the farm, pasticularly young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if
traffic routed this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to
gridiock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of
additional residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will
exacerbate this issue. Various high-density housing has been recently completed or
is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems
worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and | cannot see
an easy solution.

During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures
are employed to ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry,
including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. Inthe EIA, itis
proposed that 40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers.
Which routes would these take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same
risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. | would be concerned if
ferries were 1o use the harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would

generate. For example, the Orkney and Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars.
Would these cars be expected to follow the same route recommended for HGVs? Or

r 5

Page 18



would they use the already congested residential routes through Tonry, thereby
increasing the risk of accident? if this harbour does go ahead, | would recommend

that no passenger ferries are permitted fo use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdieness
Lighthouse to the Coast Road for 18 months. | find this unacceptable as this
effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic
heading east then having to U-tum and head back) which is a three-quarter width
road narrowing to single camiageway in places due to landslips undemmining it in
recent years. This will place additional sfress on this already weakened road,
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for
this? If the section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and
emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the
Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not
known to flood and that there is no history of landslide. These statements are
incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg
car park during storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles
and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just along the coastal path {about
100 metres after the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at around the same
time.

I am concemed that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this
area, that this could lead to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section
of Greyhope Road. As blasting is planned, | expect that there will be robust seismic
menitoring of nearby residences and buildings to ensure that any damage is
minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties fo minimise
disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether this be during construction or
operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s Church (B-listed)
and from Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly
affected and | cannot see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on

Page 19



this iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s will be very closely
surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction areas. | am very concemed
about the effect this will have on this vuinerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virlually all of the bay. in my
opinion, the frue scale of the development has not been accurately reflecied in the
glossy literature produced by the harbour board. The bay is one of the tast natural
green spaces in a densely-populated area and this harbour development will result in
our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry,
congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green space in
Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary construction/laydown
areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour
board propose o reinstate the temporary constructionflaydown areas — we need to
have accuraie #llustration and confirmation of these before any permissions are
granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

{ am wornied about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as
the construction noise from this development will on occasion, travel several
kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 if's stated that our
“bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the imimediate Nigg Bay area
during the construction phase”. | am concemed as if the dolphins are displaced for
the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility that they might never
come back. In addition, | am concermed about the physiological effects that drilling,
blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The
dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Tomry, with the
Dolphinwatch programme organised by the. RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.
Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its
migration disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel
colonies in River Dee. These are already critically endangered and under further

pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon migration
patterns could be disastrous.

Page 20



The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particudarly ducks. The
dredging would rob them of their food sources and the disturbance caused by the
construction could displace them.

Evidence of otiers has also been found i the bay according 1o the EIA. The
development of a new harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them.

Theee rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and
curved sedge. This development threatens these plants. There must be a robust
plan in place and this must be effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing
survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the ground drifling
works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this sumimer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this poflution is
quickly dispersed by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce
this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also,
dredging to create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of material from nearby
outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would resull in increased Biological
Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the
harbour and the conseguent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also
the data on the two bums in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be
incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some
tables as *>5": again, | find this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of
pollutants in the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not
already been undertaken.

In order to meet the reguirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC),
responsible authorities must carry out their statutory functions to prevent
deterioration and to improve the water environment. | would expect that this
development would only be given the go ahead if it could be proven beyond
reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect on water
quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this
directive and River Basin Management Planning.

Page 21



NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

KNoise

The cument harbour works 2477 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly
from vehicle reversing alarms and work when loading/unicading containers as well
as engine noise. This is especially troublesome during the night when the noise is
sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly suggest working
hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours
with reduced hours at weekends fo give local residents some respite. In addition, |
would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the amount of noise
transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved
soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

1 would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there
are no smell and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had
to live with the odours from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and
deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This harbour should not deal in
any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and the
harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smeliffume nuisance is not
generated there either. |

it should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have
recently amended their modelling systems fo take account of a2 “barrier” effect
created by the River Dee which “traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. | do not
believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the harbour board’s EIA. If
this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect
these at the very least to be directional and dimmabie to reduce disturbance to local
residents. | would also like to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high.

Page 22



Cwﬂﬁghmgbecaﬁredmseleded.acﬁveareasafﬂwhammmanbeing
“always on"?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES
Thereismo&dhﬁxnm&nboardmﬁleBadeiggcarpatk,emdedbyAbefﬂeen
City Council and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

Fwthesem#ismttomm&mdmmmwhg

bu&‘upm,foﬂmoue#sappea:mandtodfermymeﬂmomaﬂnﬂyto

enjoy it ;
Ihopeandhmtﬁwfﬂmemundikeepsmisparﬁmdarprmﬁsemme&ydmgg-
The bay forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead fo
the fragmentation of natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY
uismyophionﬁtataspedsofﬁlisappﬁcaﬁmarenmhmesmmofm
Planning Policy (SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.
SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early,

meaningful and proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored fo the unique
circumstances are encouraged”.

Paragraph 7 reads: *... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate
steps are taken with communities ..."

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the
local population does not have English as their first language, but not one document
has been produced in an altemnative language, effectively excluding a significant
proportion of locals from the planning process. There are no statements in other
languages on any of the documents advising how people can source copies in their
native language either, | feel that this is discrimination against this section of the
local population and should be addressed as a matter of urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leafiet drop has been
carried out to local homes — | consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to

Page 23



cost £320 million. Leaflet drops have recently been underiaken by Aberdeen City
Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at
Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

Although the development was advestised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen
Citizen) this is not circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of
consideration towards appropriate and meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Tormry residents appeared on 2 local radio show on 4 December
2015 to tak about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled fo last one hour). Despite
being invited and given ample notice the harbour board did not atiend in person but
submitted a brief statement instead. | consider this lack of engagement with locals 1o
be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right
place; it is not to allow development at any cost’.

| strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for
the local community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of
the economic case for this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel.
With oil now being approximately $40 a barre! and predicted to decrease further, |
believe that the economic case needs to be revisited at the very least and revised as
necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white
elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For
many in the community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale,
however we have been given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely
supporting information that describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

Page 24



The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in
my view, misleading. They seem fo disguise the true scale of this development and
fack detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing
eic} that will be associated with a new hasbouwr. This must be reciified as a matier of
urgency so that the public and counciliors have a frue picture of the impact of this
development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early
November, so the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As
this document is four volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this is
unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the
harbour board amrange a public meeting to enable the public o fully debate the
development. To date, this has not been done and | consider this a serious
oversight. How do people know all the implications of these proposals without having
the chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly recommend that a public
meeting is organised as a matier of urgency to allow a true debate on the
development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development
costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land aflocated as green infrastructure ...
will not result in a deficit of that provision within the local area ..."

if this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of
accessible natural space in the community. | feel that this is in contravention of

paragraph 230.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest
businesses in the world, having been founded in 1136. | therefore find it odd that
they want to build a facility to hopefully/possibly atiract some decommissioning work.
As decommissioning work was predicted by Oil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30

Page 25



Wilma Henderson

From: i Charles Mcgregor [

Sent: 06 December 2015 21:54
To: PI
Subject: OBJECTIONS TO THE BAY OF NIGG PLANS

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle reversing
alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is especially troublesome
during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly
suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be confine...d to daylight hours
with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents some respite. In addition, | would request that
robust measures be taken to minimise the amount of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps
landscaping measures or improved soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes -

| would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell and
fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours from the
Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This
harbour should not deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and
the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance is not generated there
either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently amended
their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee which “traps” odour
and pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the
harbour board’s EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the very least
to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also like to ask is there a
reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour
rather than being “always on”?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council and several
partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to improve its
appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay forms an
important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of natural habitats.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safetyis already an issue on the length of St Fittick's Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no
pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by
pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could
instead use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge - this

1

Page 26



wiﬂleadtoﬁnﬂ:ermwesﬁm.dahvsandMWWmmuM{MMaMUMj.WBMMMEMW
MWEMMaMM?Mﬂemmmm«ﬂmmhwmumhidgeisdarhedufeagain?
For safiety reasons, | would ask that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to wse the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass diose to Dooniies Farm. This facillity is freguented by families and | feel that an increase in trafic willl be
detrimental to the safety of visitors to the fanm, particularly young childiren.
MMBMaMMmmmw—imrmquawwmmthiscn.i:l
welll lead to gridiock.
Weﬁ'ngtnnﬂaadBmmaﬂhﬁm&m.nh@mdaﬂnNMmmmatmuﬂhﬁveCme
area which will exacerbate this issue. Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also
mmmmmmmummwmmmﬂmmmmmm_

During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures are employed to ensure that harbour traffic does not use
residential roads in Torry, indluding Victoria Road.
mmmﬂa&mmnmmmmmhmmubwmmmmmwbemmum
ouise passengers. Which routes would these take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as
described above.

The harbour board also propose to dose Greyhope Road from Girdieness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for 18 months. | find this unacceptable as this
effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope Road (ie. traffic heading east then having to U-tum and head back) which is 2 three-
quarter width road narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this
Mmm.mmwammmmmkumhuﬁ?ummd&aﬁmmm
omdoesfaﬂ.mwm{wmmm:mmrmmwmmwmwmm?

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry people has been shown to be worse than many other
mdcity—-thisdevelopmemﬂmMyMaﬂmkahdMMﬁMMQmmnmlmﬂmmw
wellbeing of the local community. In addition, 2 recent research paper® provides evidence that accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social
Thenwofmmmwwﬁgmwmavmﬁmmmﬁuemfabdmhm&hmhmmm
mofmecity,Torwdosnnthaveitsmlappatnrsiﬂarfaciity.ﬂlebwismofﬂlefeumh?mymevwmpztamhmme
Iustleandhmjeandmwﬁmmmmwdmmmﬂmmmdmw.uaﬂkmmm
The"lmdlaine'mmm&mmmmmmmmmmﬂﬂﬁd’sw.Weneerlmbedmimdvdw
e:adlymlandwillbebstatduﬁmlandmldheapotmtialﬂskhmeﬁmeaslsumg!yfeelﬂ\atﬂlishasmtbedﬂiymnmunimmMany
mﬂemnmmpletdvmethmmemﬂpmcﬁmmmﬁvimﬂyﬁsww&mw&ammbet&mmasamm
construction area.
Aho,ifﬂisdevelmnmtmahead,hmﬂmﬂndwmmmmmtdﬂmm,wmemﬂmmhmrm
mbehﬂtmmedTWsaemWMasﬂmmmﬂv{mmﬂsandhdoseptadmﬂymTulasPﬁmadewd.
'Neque‘msteinetal'S&imﬁnmmmmﬂwmm&hmmmmmlmmmmmmmwm'
Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES
ThéBayofN‘misa&eadvusedmm,mmsmmmmm,mmmmmm
mwillbemmpletelyinmsiﬂeifnewharbowmesalmd.ﬁmﬂemwmmmt(mmdwmmawﬂm
work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this
development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight.
meﬁons,peoplewimbcalmnnecﬁonshavemmwm'saﬂwsinﬁm&yufﬂig(themhasastrmgseafarhgba:lymxd].
M\aewﬂlpeoplepaytha‘rrespeminmeftmrewhenMhaykiumﬁﬂeaﬂmmndedbvnineandahaﬁfoothighsewﬁtyfaﬂng?m
hm«mdhmbemahedammhwmﬂvatmdemcﬂnmurﬁww,wbmyetmwmﬁdeanademnmmmﬂis
aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application. -

VISUAL APPEARANCE
Themwilbeamnsiderableimpactonviewsfmm()ldStFltﬁd(sGkﬁth{B—listed}andfrmGirdlermsUgﬁthmlA-&stedl-StFMsinm
wiﬁhembadiyaﬁededandlwnnotseeampotenﬁalmuﬁﬁgamtheinwdofﬂnemwharbwrmthisknnichuiding.lnadcﬁﬁon,‘rtnnwamars
ﬂmﬂﬁuﬂswﬂibeverydoselysurroundedmmosﬁesbyﬂmmrmnwucﬁmms.iamwwmmedabommeeﬁedtﬁswihamm
this vulnerable building.
Thescaleofmisdevelopnemishuge-ittakaupvirmaﬂyallofﬂnhav.lnmophmmeuuescaleofmedemlmentmmhemmwy
reﬂectedinﬂlegiossylitserantreproducedWmmm.mmamdmmmm;reenmhadensﬁﬁmmmedmwﬂﬁ
harbour development will result in our residential community being almast completely surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In
addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary construction/laydown areas, further
disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown
areas — we need to have accurate illustration and confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

1 am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the construction noise from this development will on occasion,
travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it's stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the
immediate Nigg Bay area during the construction phase”. | am concerned as if the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three years)
there is a possibility that they might never come back. In addition, | am concerned about the physiological effects that drilling, blasting, piling and
dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the
Dolphinwatch programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration disrupted which could impact on life cycle of
freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These are already critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a

2

Page 27



smalll impact on salmon migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also 2 valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob them of their food sources and the disturbance caused
by the construction cowld displace them.
&denmdmhasdmhemMnhMWm&ﬂMWdammanm:mmmm
Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge. This development threatens these plants. There
mheasmmninmaﬁmmmmwm-mmmmmwmmmwm
some of the ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL INPACT

At the moment, two polliuted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters
would reduce this dilution rate, therefore poliutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbouwr would encourage
wammmmmﬂﬁmammmmmmmwwmmommu
potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the
two burns in the Environmental impact Assessment appears to be incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some
tables as “>5™: again, | fiind this lack of robust data unacceptable.

1 would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic
respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

1t is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Comminity
Engagement

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: "Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to
Paragraph 7 reads: *_. developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are taken with communities _
Tmﬂmmmmwwmmmmwm&mmmdmmmmwmwammmm
not one document has been produced in an alternative language, effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals from the planning process.
There are no statements in other languages on any of the documents advising how people can source copies in their native language either. lfeelthat
this is discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a matter of urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leafiet drop has been carried cut to local homes — lmmmhram
estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water
(upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not dirculated in the Torry area which demonstrates a
lack of consideration towards appropriate and meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concemned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one
hour). Despite being invited and given ample notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. | consider this
lack of engagement with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not to allow development at any cost”.

I strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local community and that our voices have not been heard. In
addition, much of the economic case for this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately $40 a barrel
and predicted to decrease further, | believe that the economic case needs to be revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this
new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the community, this development is inappropriate in its
location and scale, however we have been given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting information that describes _ the implications of the
proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view, misleading. They seem to disguise the true scale of this
development and lack detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a new harbour.
This must be rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to
examine it. As this document is four volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour board arrange a public meeting to enable the public to
fully debate the development. To date, this has not been done and | consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of <
these proposals without having the chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter
of urgency to allow a true debate on the development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not result in a deficit of that provision within the local area ..”

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural space in the community. | feel that this is in
contravention of paragraph 230.

Page 28



Trudie leask

185 Virtoria Road
Tomry

Aberdeen

AB11 SNE

Planning and Sustainable Development
Abendeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Marischal Coliege

Broad Street
Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

11 December 2015

Dear Sir/Madam

ABERDEEN HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT, NIGG BAY, ABERDEEN
j wish to reise an objection to the above development.

No Benefits for Torry

Barton Willmore and the harbour board state this is a great asset that will bring
opportunity and regeneration to the iocal community but despite attending 2 exhibitions
and 1 of the meetings and asking at each one for the details of these opportunities and
w@enerationp!ansno‘!om:ehaveIbeengivenasing!eanmmﬂntqmﬁmandfeeﬂﬂnﬁs
statemant has no depth to it and has simply been put in to try and fool the Torry community
against the negative impacts of the projeci. § feel Tory is seen as seen as a community
that may not object as much as other areas.

In Barton Willmore’s initial document comparing the sights of Footdee to Nigg Bay it states
“aithough North Beach offered greater scope to create the required berthing the
development of Footdee offers litte in the way of community benefit and should be
rejected as it would generate significant opposition from the public.”

Traffic
The increase on traffic in Victoria Road will be horrendous. There are already numerous
heavy lorries thundering up and down this residential area already without adding to this.

The council have advised as this is a2 major access road for emergency services they cannot
introduce traffic calming measures.

Barton Willmore say their intehtion is to direct traffic onto the coastal road but the
intention of the Queen Elizabath Bridge was to direct traffic onto Wellington Road and not
through Torry so as they say the worid is full of good intentions that never happen. A

Page 29



report | obtained from Police Scotland under the Freedom of information {Scotland) Act
2002 siztes there have been 9 accident on Victoria Road in the last 24 months — most likely
the most on any residential road in Absrdeen cily.

Also we have Wellington Road and Market Street 2 of the roads which already have the
worst air pollution in Scotland.

This is 2 residential area and the road is dangerous enough without introducing further
traffic and humes. :

Environment impact.

We will lose the Dolphins. The blasting, dredging and general work will drive them away.
The Dolphins bring people to the ares that would normally never come here. A chance to
see Torry in a different and peositive light. This will be lost.

At a meeting held in the summer by the council locals wanted facilities installed for these
visitors. VWhat are they going to come and see now dredging and blasting?

Add to this plants, fish and other marine life that will be lost. Many of these being rare
SPECies

Green space is also going to disappear — parts of Walker Park,5t Fitticks Park and Balnagask
Golf Course are all going. Some for the period of development, some for good. Is this
necessary? Surely development could have taken place elsewhere and have been floated in.

The beautiful views over the Bay if Nigg will be removed and replaced by a concrete jungle
surroundsd by 9 fest high fences and 81 feet high lighting.

1don’t see how the removal of green space from a2n area where a great many people stay in
flats with little or no garden space as a benefit or the removal of the visitors we get to the
area brought in by the Dolphins.

Woaste Water Works
The Community Council have also worked hard to get rid of the Torry stench but there is
concern all the dredging and drilling could cause damage to the ancient sewage pipe | see

nothirig put in place to protect this so more months of stench for the community resulting in
health problems.

House Prices

With 19 months of blasting and dredging which appears from the plans to be continuos and
not contained within certain hours and the possibility of pollutants from the building
process and the decommission. The increase in traffic. The huge development right on our
doorstep. The loss of green space and the harbour board taking over the full Torry coastline
are zll detrimental to the area and are certain to decrease the value of property.

Page 30



Marketing images and Harbour Activity

The harbour board have tended to market this development very much for hmury cruise
wimmh%mqmmmmmmmwmmdomwmmha
working harbour it’s for sverything. 1 believe this cruise ship marketing has been a bit false
and misleading when in reality cruise ships are likely to make up only 2% of the harbour
traffic. Decommissioningis one of the things it will be usad for. This can bring radioactive
and canterous materials, Stuﬂvduelomﬁmufﬂuehwboursonwhmﬁngforﬂﬁswmmf
activity is completely wrong.  The cruise ships being used as the main focus on the
marketing has been mislesding

Harbour Communicztion

The harbour board website states “strong ethos of communication with stakeholders
including local residents as rasidents have 2 crugial role to play in guiding Aberdeen Harbour
forward.”

ﬂfthlsismeadualasewiwwasnomomaepostersermmofﬁmﬁitemm regarding the
development on the Harbour Board website in another language. Torry has a huge amount
of east European reﬁdemssohowdidmeHarhoanoardmmmunmwiﬂnﬂnemmrﬂue
development? There was also no posters other than one in the Library on the coundi! run

exhibiﬁonnrieaﬂasdmslomﬂvadvisingabmnanvofthemaeﬁm Mot everyone fistens
to the local radic or has access to the Internst.

I feel the strong ethos of communication has not been fulfilled

Also | must raise the point that when | attended the council run exhibition | was extremely
disappointed to be told by the older woman Council representative that this was simply a
going through the motions exercise as it was a national development and had already been
decided and the purpose of the council exhibition was simply to let people object to the
details of the scheme rather than the scheme itself. This was obviousiy false information
and I'm disappointed the council sent a representative to the community so unaware of the
facts and felt that was acceptable on such a major develcpment.

Torry has always been used as a dumping ground - old Torry was demolished te make way
for a harbour development in favour of allowing Footdee to remain intact, we have a waste
water plant, a planned incinerator and now ancther planned industrial site will surround the
areas remaining coastline. The initial study identified Footdee equally If not more
preferable to Nigg Bay other than the residents would complain more. I'm sure the cruise
ship market the harbour board are so desperately soliciting would much rather welcome
stepping off the ships to the quaint homes of Footdee than the welcome of the smelly
Wasta Water plant in Torry.

In my opinion Torry has too much to lose and nothing to gain from this development.

Page 31



Yours faithfully

TRUDIE LEASK

Page 32



PI

From: Matthew Norrie [ G

Sent: 14 December 2015 11:24

To: ms.marinelicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; harbourorders@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; PI
Subject: Objection to Proposed harbour development at Bay of Nigg, Aberdeen

Dear Sir/Madam

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay of Nigg
Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry people has
been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help this as there is a
lot of research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the
local community. In addition, a recent research paper (* see details below) provides evidence that
accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for local
people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own large park or
similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get away from the hustle and bustle
and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of industry, traffic and other
people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and further up St
Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land could be at
potential risk in the future as | strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem
completely unaware that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be
taken over as a temporary construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the
area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space, such as the
recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real” event held in Torry. The overwhelming message from
residents was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an aquarium with
adjacent restaurant were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been
learned (or remembered?).

| am not against all development, but am against development that | consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, | fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor centre to
view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of development that
should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural
environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain bikers,
anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if new harbour goes
ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to
have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL population who will
have to live next to this development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay of Nigg
(the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the future when the

1

Page 33



bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have
been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to provide an
adequate response and this aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application.

| am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas to four play
areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and playpark) in St
Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are much more susceptible to
air pollution than adults and | find it unacceptable that construction sites (which are expected to generate
a lot of dust) are to be sited next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that some of the
areas earmarked for construction sites have been recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during
the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north
junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road,
already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and
people accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who would have
walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with
the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to
negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and potentially
damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge
is damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended until
the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, | would ask that no harbour HGVs would be
permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families and | feel
that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young
children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed this way
as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional resuiences are
being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue. Various high-density
housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these
traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and | cannot see an
easy solution.

During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures are employed to
ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that 40 luxury
coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these take? The same as
the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. | would be concerned if ferries were to use the
harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and
Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route
recommended for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential routes through Torry,
thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go ahead, | would recommend that no
passenger ferries are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for
18 months. | find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope
Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width road
narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in recent years. This will place
additional stress on this already weakened road, increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What

2

Page 34



mitigation is proposed for this? If the section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and
emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?
Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood and
that there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded
quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of
sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just along the coastal path (about 100
metres after the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at around the same time.

| am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this could lead
to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As blasting is planned, |
expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences and buildings to ensure that any
damage is minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to minimise disturbance and
damage caused by vibration, whether this be during construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s Church (B-listed) and from Girdleness
Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and | cannot see any potential to
mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s
will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction areas. | am very concerned
about the effect this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true scale of
the development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by the harbour board.
The bayis one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area and this harbour development
will result in our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry, congested roads
and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be
taken up by temporary construction/laydown areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose to
reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration and
confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

| am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the construction noise
from this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4,
page 107 it's stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay
area during the construction phase”. | am concerned as if the dolphins are displaced for the duration of
construction (three years) there is a possibility that they might never come back. In addition, | am
concerned about the physiological effects that drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins
and other marine mammals. The dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry,
with the Dolphinwatch programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration disrupted
which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These are already
critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon
migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob them of
their food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a new harbour
is unlikely to have a positive effect on them.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge. This
development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be effectively
implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the
ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

Page 35



ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed by the
waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could
build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of
material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result in increased Biological
Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the
consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the two burns in the
Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition,
the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, | find this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in the
harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities
must carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the water environment. |
would expect that this development would only be given the go ahead if it could be proven beyond
reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect on water quality, otherwise this
would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this directive and River Basin Management
Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle reversing
alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is especially troublesome
during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly
suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours
with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents some respite. In addition, | would request that
robust measures be taken to minimise the amount of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps
landscaping measures or improved soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

| would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell and
fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours from the
Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This
harbour should not deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and
the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance is not generated there
either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently amended
their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee which “traps” odour
and pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the
harbour board’s EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.
Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the very least
to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also like to ask is there a
reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour
rather than being “always on”?

Regards

Matthew Norrie
133 Abbey Road
Torry

Aberdeen

AB11 9Q8B

Page 36



Miss Yvonne F Doughty
139 Farquhar Road
Torry

Aberdeen

AB118SJ

Aberdeen City Council

Planning & Sustainable Development
Business Hub 4

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen

14.12.15

Dear SirfMadam,

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay
of Nigg Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

1.0 NEEDS OF THE AREA HAVE NOT BEEN FULLY CONSIDERED

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry
residents has been shown to be worse than in many other areas of the city — this development
will not help this and there is a lot of research evidence that indicates that accessible green
spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local community. In addition, a recent
research paper* provides evidence that accessible green spaces also contribute to more social

cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and it's surrounding area provides a valuable free, accessible leisure resource
for local people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have it's
own large park or similar facility. The bay is the only area in Torry where you can get away from
the hustle and bustle and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises

of industry, traffic and other people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and

further up St Fittick's Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and

Page 37



what land could be at potential risk in the future this has not be clearly communicated by the
harbour board. Many people seem completely unaware that the golf practice area would virtually
disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction area.

If this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the
area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space,
such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

“Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural
environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015

20 INCOMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatdmérs, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain
bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if a
new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour
Board) little work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed
by the local population who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an

unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay
of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respecis in the
future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing?
The harbour board have been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community
Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response and this aspect does not appear to
feature in their planning application.

3.0 PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION — SAFEETY RISKS

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and
during the operation of the proposed new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick's Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to
its north junction with Greyhope Road and will become critical as there is no pavement for
pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour
traffic, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this

Page 38



development goes ahead, many pedesirians, who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg. could
start to use this route for walking to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic,
significantly increases the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have
to negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and
potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for
example, the bridge is damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will iraffic be re-routed or will HGV
movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, there is no
way that HGVs should be pemmitied to use the residential sireets in Torry. Also, these additional
HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families and | feel that an
increase in traffic will be increase the safety risks for visitors to the farm, particularly young
children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity, according to Aberdeen City Council; if traffic is
routed this way, as suggested by the Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock and further
safety risks. ;

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional
residences are being built at its southem end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue.
Various high-density housing has recently been completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell
which will also make these traffic problems worse. Traffic travelling to and from the proposed
Harbour will only add to these congestion problems and further increase the safety risk.

During construction and operation there has to be strict policing of the area to ensure that
harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that
40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these
take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure
as described above.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the
Coast Road for 18 months. | find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the
remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back)

which is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips

Page 39



undemmining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this already weakened road,
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What miligation is proposed for this? If the
section of Greyhope Road left open fails, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access the
Tomry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

4.0 VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick's Church (B-listed) and from
Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and | cannot
see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it
now appears that St Fittick’s will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary™
consfruction areas. | am very concemed about the effect this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true
scale of the development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by
the harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area
and this harbour development will result in our residential community being almost completely
surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green
space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary construction/laydown
areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board
propose to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate
illustration and confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

5.0 IMPACT ON NATURE

| am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the
construction noise from this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the
water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it's stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be
displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during the construction phase”. | am concerned as if
the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility that
they might never come back. In addition, | am concerned about the physiological effects that
drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The
dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphinwatch
programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Page 40



Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration
disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater peari mussel colonies in River Dee.
These are already critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so
even a small impact on salmon migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob
them of their food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a
new harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved
sedge. This development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this
must be effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been
damaged by some of the ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in
the bay this summer.

6.0 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two poliuted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed
by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore
poliutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would
encourage “backflow” of material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would
result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial
respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas.
Also the data on the two bumns in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be
incomplete — this is unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, |
find this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in
the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

Page 41



7.0 NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

7.1 Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there is noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle
reversing alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is
especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As
mitigation, | would strongly suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the
harbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents
some respite. In addition, | would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the amount
of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved
soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay ?

7.2 Smell and fumes

| would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no
smell and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the
odours from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from
unpleasant odours. This harbour should not deal in any materials that have the potential to create
unpleasant odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that

smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently
amended their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee
which “traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that this microclimate effect
has been explored in the harbour board’s EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect
is examined as a matter of urgency.

7.3 Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the
very least to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also
like to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected,
active areas of the harbour rather than being “always on"?

8.0 VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES
There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council

and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

Page 42



For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to
improve its appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay
forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of
natural habitats.

9.0 SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy
(SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful
and proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged’.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are
taken with communities ..."

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local
population does not have English as their first language, but not one document has been
produced in an alterative language, effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals from
the planning process. There are no statements in other languages on any of the documents
advising how people can source copies in their native language either. | feel that this is
discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a matter of
urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leafiet drop has been carried out to
local homes — | consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet
drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and
Scottish Water (upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for
this.

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not
circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and

meaningful consultation with locals.

Page 43



Also, concemed Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk
about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled fo last one hour). Despite being invited and given
ample notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. |
consider this lack of engagement with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not
to allow development at any cost™.

| strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local
community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for
this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately
$40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, | believe that the economic case needs to be
revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed
it could well be a “white elephant™ and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the
community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been
given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting
information that describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view,
misleading. They seem to disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the
infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a
new harbour. This must be rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have
a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so
the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four volumes
and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour board
arrange a public meeting to enable the 'public to fully debate the development. To date, this has
not been done and | consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of
these proposals without having the chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly

recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a true debate on

Page 44



the development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development costing £320
million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: "Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not
resull in a deficit of that provision within the local area ...”

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural
space in the community. | feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

Yours Faithfully

Yvonne Doughty

Page 45



Pl

From: john webb

Sent: 14 December 2015 12:23

To: PI; harbourorders@scotland.gsi.gov.uk

Cc Maureen Watt.msp@scottish.parliament.uk; callum.mccaigmp@parliament.uk

Subject: Proposed Harbour in Nigg Bay, Aberdeen: Torry Resident Response (14th December
2015)

Dear Sir/Madam,

Please find my response detailed below.

Note; It has been copied to both the local MSP and MP.
Please acknowledge receipt of this response.

Thank you.

Yours faithfully,

John Webb

13 Morven Place, Torry, Aberdeen AB11 8EU

For the attention of: Aberdeen City Council and Transport Scotland

14" December 2015

13 Morven Place
Aberdeen
AB11 8EU

Dear Sir/Madam

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

I am a permanent resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay of
Nigg Aberdeen.

A summary of the reasons for objecting to the proposals are listed below:

NEEDS OF THE AREA

Page 46



There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry people has been
shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help this as there is a lot of research
evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local community. In
addition, a recent numerous research papers provide convincing evidence that accessible, green spaces also
contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for local people, which
cannot be replaced. Unlike many other areas of the city, Torry does not have its own large landscaped/serviced park
or similar facility.

It should be noted that the proposed “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping
further and further up St Fittick’s Road. (unacceptable)

The community needs to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land could be at potential risk in
the future as | strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated. Indeed, the so-called ‘Public consultation’
events only showed the possibiiity of minor changes at the existing T-junction. Many people seem completely
unaware that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary
construction area. The so-called ‘consultation’ events were therefore misleading. (unacceptable)

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the area, by
strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space, such as the recently ‘prettified
wetlands’ and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelming message from residents was
that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an aquarium with adjacent restaurant were
proposed) - not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been learned (or perhaps, just conveniently
forgotten?).

| am not wholly against all development, but am against development that | consider unsustainable,
disproportionate and will act to further degrade the environment in Torry. For example, | fully support the Greyhope
Bay project, which envisaged a visitor centre to view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop.

This seems to me to be just the kind of development that should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy
industry and the prospect of the industrial squalor of East Tullos Industrial Estate extending down to the sea.

The Social Survey suggests very strongly that few —if any of the permanent residents of Torry are currently
employed by AHB. The development proposal contains nothing to suggest that this situation is likely to alter.
(unacceptable) .

IMPACTS ON ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during the
operation of the proposed harbour.

The applicant has failed to confirm whether the nearby roads will be closed during construction (unacceptable)

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north junction
with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter-width road, already heavily
used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf
course. If the development goes ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead
use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the
risk of accident. (unacceptable)

2

Page 47



During construction, a2 large number of HGVs will likely use three-guarter width Coast Road and have to negotiate
the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and potentially damage to the
bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example; a large/heavy vehicle damages the
bridge? (unacceptable).

Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again? Why is
there no statement that harbour HGVs would NOT be permitted to use any of the residential streets in Torry?
{unacceptable)

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to the already degraded Doonie’s Farm. Many families frequent this
facility, and | feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young
children. (unacceptable)

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council (ACC})— if traffic routed this way as
suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridiock. (unacceptable)

Wellington Road is already very congested and has some of the poorest air quality in Scotland. A large number of
additional residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove area, which will exacerbate this issue. Various
high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell, which will also make
these traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems. (unacceptable)

AHB has also made a number of unsubstantiated and exaggerated claims re cruise ships. (unacceptable). Since when
do large cruise ships require a harbour/berth? Why would they divert to a place like Aberdeen? In the EIA, it is
proposed that 40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. To where? Which routes would
they take - the same routes as the HGVs? This would carry the same risks to the Coast Road infrastructure as
described above. (unacceptable)

Many of the early “visualisation” photos suggested that ferries would also use the new harbour. The possible
justification for a further ferry point is not currently known (unacceptable). | would be concerned if ferries were to
use the harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and
Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route recommended
for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential routes through Torry, thereby increasing noise,
pollution and the risk of an accident? (unacceptable)

AHB also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for ~18 months. This is
completely unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic
heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single
carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this already
weakened road, increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the
section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and
the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the EIA it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood and that there is no history of landslides. These
statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during
storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road.
Also, just along the coastal path (about 100 metres along from the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at
around the same time. (unacceptable)

| am very concerned that as AHB intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this could lead to further
landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. (unacceptable)

3

Page 48



The current EIA fails to consider the impact of 19+months of blasting on the Torry Community and what monitoring
and mitigation/compensation arrangements would be in place. (unacceptable)

VISUAL AMENITY

There will be considerable permanent impacts on the visual amenity of the area. Views from Old St Fittick’s Church
(B-listed) and from Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected.
{unacceptable) ;

In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction
areas. (unacceptable) | am very concerned about the effect this will have on this vulnerable site.

The scale of this development is very lareg - it takes up virtually all of the bay. The true scale of the development has
not been accurately refiected in much of the glossy literature produced by the harbour board (unacceptable).

The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area, and this harbour development will result
in our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry squalor, congested roads and the
railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by
temporary construction/lay-down areas, further disadvantaging the local community.(unacceptable)

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the AHB propose to reinstate the temporary
construction/lay-down areas.(unacceptable)

The local community should be fully consulted on an accurate illustration and confirmation of these before the
application is fully considered and determined.

IMPACTS ON LOCAL NATURE AND ASSOCIATED VALUES AND SERVICES

The EIA currently fails to adequately assess the risks to the Dee SAC and wildlife. The sections re Atlantic salmon (a
Public resource) are notably bereft of credible data and analysis. Indeed, it is clear that the applicant’s agents have
deliberately not consulted experts in the fields of adult salmon behaviour and underwater noise impacts on their
migration. (unacceptable) . (Note: The local Fishery Board/Trust do not currently have the required level of
expertise).

The EIA currently fails to address the potential issue of Atlantic salmon behaviour in relation to the proposed
harbour space and the associated breakwaters. (unacceptable)

NOTE: Transport Scotland has so far declined to acknowledge a request for the release of details of the underwater
noise monitoring associated with the recent blasting works at the new Forth Road Crossing (River Forth SAC).

See the link https:/www.st-andrews.ac.uk/news/archive/2012/title.95824.en.php

The outcomes of meetings between the applicant (and it's agents) and the Dee District Salmon Fishery Board
(DDSFB) are not a matter of Public record. (unacceptable)

Volume 4, page 107 it’s stated that “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay
area during the construction phase”. (unacceptable) Note: The deliberate disturbance of Bottle-nosed dolphins is

4

Page 49



an offence.

It is worth noting that the dolphins have proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphinwatch program
organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging/construction/operation would
reduce their access to food sources and moulting habitat. (unacceptable)

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. Note:The deliberate disturbance/disruption
of otters is an offence.

Three rare plants of National importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge. This development
threatens all these plants. There should be a robust plan in place and this must be effectively implemented to
ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the exploratory drilling works and
associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer. (unacceptable)

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Two highly polluted burns discharge into Nigg Bay. The statement in the EIA that raw water quality data for both
burns is ‘unavailable’ is grossly misleading, because SEPA has been monitoring both watercourses for many years.
(unacceptable) The possibility that this data and information is being deliberately withheld is completely
unacceptable.

The range and mobility of highly toxic materials buried in the former ACC dump (including known radioactive
sources) and in soils at the former BG gas works (including known carcinogens) is not currently known.

(unacceptable)

The data presented on the two burns in the EIA appears to be inconsistent with SEPA’s classification and incomplete
— 1 consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, this lack of robust data
is unacceptable.

The current refusal of SEPA to release all of the existing soil/water contaminant data associated with the polluted
watercourses entering Nigg bay is completely unacceptable.

Dredging to create the harbour may encourage “backflow” of material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic
material. This could result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial
respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. (unacceptable)

The EIA currently fails to demonstrate robust modelling having been carried out on the potential build up of
pollutants in the new harbour (e.g. from the East Tullos Burn) and the possibility of significant anaerobic processes
developing. (unacceptable)

In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities must
carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the water environment. The EIA has
failed to prove beyond reasonable doubt that the proposed harbour would not have a negative effect on water
quality —suggesting that it would be non-compliant with the objectives of this directive and River Basin
Management Planning. (unacceptable)

Page 50



PUBLICALLY STATED VIEWS OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council (ACC) and several
partner organisations. Part of the sign reads: ..For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside
from being built upon, to improve its oppearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

Accordingly, any support of the proposed development by ACC would constitute an obvious contradiction of this
statement. (unacceptable)

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

The application is not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community
Engagement. (unacceptable)

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and proportionate.
Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged”. Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers
should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are taken with communities ...”

To date, the “consultation’ process has been minimal in the extreme — and dominated by a concerted program of
cynical glossy “spin’ and general misinformation. (unacceptable)

Many Torry residents continue to be unaware of the plans and their scale. (unacceptable)

Approximately 15% of the local population does not have English as their first language, but not one document has
been produced in an alternative language. (unacceptable) Blatant ignorance of - or discrimination against this
section of the local population is completely unacceptable and should be addressed as a matter of urgency.

No leaflet drop has been carried out to local homes — | consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost
£320 million. (Note: Leaflet drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste
incinerator) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for
this.).

Aberdeen Harbour Board has also failed to keep pre-registered Torry residents informed of developments as
previously agreed. (unacceptable)

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not circulated in the
Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and meaningful consultation with locals.
(unacceptable)

Concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk about the Bay of Nigg (show
was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given ample notice the AHB chose not attend in person
but submitted a brief statement instead. (unacceptable)

No member of AHB has yet presented themselves for questioning to the local community. (unacceptable). The
Board continues to hold its AGM in the sumptuous luxury of the 5- star Marcliffe Hotel in the West End of the city.
(unacceptable)

Page 51



SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right ploce; it is not to allow
development ot any cost”.

The true economic, social and environmental motivations underpinning the proposed harbour development are not
currently known. (unacceptable)

Recent developments suggest that contrary what has been claimed by the applicant, the proposed harbour may in
fact be used for “dirty activities” including decommissioning work and a large domestic/industrial waste transfer
‘hub’. The possibility that the nearby St. Fittick’s park and playing fields will also be used for further spread of the
East Tullos industrial squalor cannot be discounted. (unacceptable)

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the community, this
development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been given little opportunity to have our
voices heard. (unacceptable)

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting information that describes
.. the implications of the proposal”.

The highly sanitised “visualisation’ images of the proposed development that have been circulated in the local press
are in my view, misleading (and city council planning officials have the same view according to an article in the
Evening Express). They seem to aimed at deliberately disguising the true use and scale of the development, and lack
detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing etc). (unacceptable)

This must be rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of
this development.

The EIA was only made publicly available in early November, so the public no more the the statutory minimum of 42
days to examine it. (unacceptable) As this document is four volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this
is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that AHB arrange a public meeting to
enable’the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has not been done and | consider this a serious
oversight.(unacceptable)

How do people know 2ll the potential implications of these proposals without having the chance to discuss them
meaningfully? | would strongly recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a true

debate on the proposed development. | think this is 2 wholly proportionate response to a development costing £320
million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not result in a deficit of that
provision within the local area ..."

Torry is currently almost completely encircled by Wellington road, the railway/STW and the existing harbour's
boundary security fence. If this development goes ahead it will have a disproportionately negative impact on the
small amount of remaining accessible natural space in the community. | feel that this is in direct contravention of
Paragraph 230. (unacceptable)

CLOSING REMARKS

Torry residents and city planners are currently forced to speculate about many important aspects of the proposed
development. In particular, the relationship between the new waste ‘sorting’ centre at Doonie’s farm; the
proposed incinerator, what actually constitutes ‘decommissioning’ work and the proposed new harbour. It also
raises serious questions as to why Torry’s children will in future be forced to attend a school located so far away
from the area? This is completely unacceptable.

Page 52



Against this background, until the current serious gaps in the data and information are addressed (i.e. a full and
suitably detailed EIA is submitted) | am forced to object to the proposed development and recommend that ACC

planner’s consideration of this application be suspended on the basis of a lack of appropriate assessment and 2
systematic failure to consuit the local community appropriately.

John Webb
13 Morven Place, Torry.

Page 53



Against this background, until the current serious gaps in the data and information are addressed (i.e. a full and
suitably detailed EIA is submitted) | am forced to object to the proposed development and recommend that ACC

planner’s consideration of this application be suspended on the basis of a lack of appropriate assessment and 2
systematic failure to consuit the local community appropriately.

John Webb
13 Morven Place, Torry.

Page 54



Pl

From: simon mclean ||| G
Sent: 14 December 2015 19:44
Subject: Bay of Nigg Harbour proposal planning objection

Dear Sir/Madam

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

As a Torry resident, a recently elected member of the Torry community council and someone in a
media role; I have found the information in the guise of consultation for the proposal to change
the Bay of Nigg questionable.

I did not receive nor would it appear any leaflets to the local population (local being Torry; the
population being more affected) — speaking to people while campaigning for the Torry
community council election; few people knew about the plans — those who commented generally
thought it was luxury cruise liners promoting tourism or are against the project for different
reasons.

The economic argument given favours the harbour boards interests in the main. The plan
focuses on the alleged anticipated activities at the proposed Nigg harbour, tacitly mentioning the
latter infrastructure changes — such as the proposed new road from Nigg harbour to East Tullos
industrial estate. Who benefits and who pays? I have concerns that the public are subsiding
narrow interest and ‘best value’ is not being met for the public either financially nor indeed
social-economically e.g. traffic and pollution onto the public especially residents of Torry.

Local City councillors were surprised of the loss of Walker Park when mentioned at the
November 2015 Torry Community Council meeting; again I wonder what, when and to whom
the information has been given during the process.

The communication carried out would favour limited planning objections while claiming to have
‘consulted’ on the planning matter.

Below are further points that I raise to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay of
Nigg Aberdeen:

NEEDS OF THE AREA

Page 55



There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry
people has been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help
this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the health
and wellbeing of the local community. In addition, a recent research paper* provides evidence that
accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower erime

rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for
local people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own
large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get away from
the hustle and bustle and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises

of industry, traffic and other people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and further
up St Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land
could be at potential risk in the future as I strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated.
Many people seem completely unaware that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and

that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of
the area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space,

such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelming message
from residents was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an
aquarium with adjacent restaurant were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this

exercise not been learned (or remembered?).

I am not against all development, but am against development that I consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, I fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor
centre to view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of

development that should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

“Netta Weinstein et al "Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural environments,

community cohesion and erime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

Page 56



The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain
bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers ete. This area will be completely inaccessible if new
harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour
Board) little work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by
the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an

unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay of
Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the
future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing?
The harbour board have been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community
Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response and this aspect does not appear to feature

in their planning application.

I am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas

to four play areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and
playpark) in St Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are
much more susceptible to air pollution than adults and I find it unacceptable that construction
sites (which are expected to generate a lot of dust) are to be sited next to these play facilities. It is
also disappointing to note that some of the areas earmarked for construction sites have been

recently planted with native trees.
PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

I am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and

during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its
north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-
quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently
used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many
pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure
walk to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of

accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to
negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and
potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for

example, the bridge is damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV

Page 57



movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, I would ask

that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families
and I feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm,

particularly young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed

this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional
residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue.
Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell
which will also make these traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these

congestion problems and I cannot see an easy solution.

During construction and operation, I would request that strict mitigation measures are employed

to ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that
40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these
take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as

described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. I would be concerned if ferries were to
use the harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the
Orkney and Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow
the same route recommended for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential
routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go ahead, 1

would recommend that no passenger ferries are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast
Road for 18 montbhs. I find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the
remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which
is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips
undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this already weakened road,
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the
section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access the

Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to
flood and that there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does

flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December
4

Page 58



2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also,
just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at

around the same time.

[ am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this
could lead to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As
blasting is planned, I expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences and
buildings to ensure that any damage is minimised. I would also expect rigorous monitoring of
properties to minimise disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether this be during

construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s Church (B-listed) and from
Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and I cannot
see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it
now appears that St Fittick’s will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary”

construction areas. I am very concerned about the effect this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true
scale of the development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by the
harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area and this
harbour development will result in our residential community being almost completely
surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green
space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary construction/laydown

areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose
to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration and

confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

[ am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the
construction noise from this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the
water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it’s stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be
displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during the construction phase”. I am concerned as if

the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility that
5

Page 59



they might never come back. In addition, I am concerned about the physiological effects that
drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The
dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphinwatch

programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration
disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These
are already critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a

small impact on salmon migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob

them of their food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a new

harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge.
This development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be
effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged
by some of the ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this

summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed
by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore
pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would
encourage “backflow” of material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would
result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial
respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas.
Also the data on the two burns in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be incomplete
— I consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, I find

this lack of robust data unacceptable.

I would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in
the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.
In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible
authorities must carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the

water environment. I would expect that this development would only be given the go ahead if it

6

Page 60



could be proven beyond reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect
on water quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this

directive and River Basin Management Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle
reversing alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is
especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As
mitigation, I would strongly suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the
harbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents
some respite. In addition, I would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the amount
of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved

soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

[ would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell
and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours
from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant
odours. This harbour should not deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant
odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smell/fume

nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently
amended their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee
which “traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. I do not believe that this microclimate effect
has been explored in the harbour board’s EIA. If this is the case, I strongly advise that this effect is

examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. I would expect these at the

very least to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. I would also like

Page 61



to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected, active

areas of the harbour rather than being “always on”?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council

and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon,

to improve its appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

I hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay
forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of

natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy

(SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and

proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged”.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are

taken with communities ...”

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local
population does not have English as their first language, but not one document has been produced
in an alternative language, effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals from the
planning process. There are no statements in other languages on any of the documents advising
how people can source copies in their native language either. I feel that this is discrimination

against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a matter of urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet drop has been carried out to local
homes — I consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet drops
have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish

Water (upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

Page 62



Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not
circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and

meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk about
the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given ample
notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. 1

consider this lack of engagement with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not

to allow development at any cost”.

[ strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local
community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for
this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately
$40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, I believe that the economic case needs to be
revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed it

could well be a “white elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the
community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been

given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting

information that describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view,
misleading. They seem to disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the
infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a
new harbour. This must be rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have

a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so
the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four volumes

and is estimated to weigh 25kg, I feel that this is unacceptable.

Page 63



At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour board
arrange a public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has
not been done and I consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of
these proposals without having the chance to discuss them meaningfully? 1 would strongly
recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a true debate on the
development. I think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development costing £320

million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not result

in a deficit of that provision within the local area ...”

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural

space in the community. I feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest businesses in the
world, having been founded in 1136. I therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to
hopefully/possibly attract some decommissioning work. As decommissioning work was predicted
by Oil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30 years, this seems an incredibly short active lifespan when
compared to the longevity of the Harbour Board. I would have thought that they of all people

would have avoided such a large development with such a limited lifespan.

I am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event. As recent
events in Cumbria have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year" events in just 10 years.
With climate change now widely accepted I would have thought that a much more robust

construction would have been recommended.

Various sites of archaeological interest have been identified both on and offshore in the Bay. I
would expect that these be fully catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to

construction.

I was disappointed with the "Socio Economics" chapter of the EIA. There appears to have been
very little work done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-local,
“formal” visitors to the area (for example many informal visitors come to the bay to birdwatch — as
the area is renowned for its passage migrants — and to spot dolphins). I feel this chapter does not

reflect a true picture of how the bay is utilised by locals and informal visitors and to me this is a

10

Page 64



glaring omission in this report. Sadly, it seems that more attention has been given to the animals

in the bay, rather than the humans who will have to live next to this development.

Yours,

Simon McLean

1%

Page 65



Pl

From:
Sent: 14 December 2015 22:20
To: ms.marinelicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; harbourorders@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; PI
Subject: Objection to proposed Bay of Nigg, Aberdeen harbour develapment
Ground Floor Right Flat
239 Victoria Road
Aberdeen AB11 SNQ
Dear SirfMadam

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Torry and would like to object in the strongest possible terms to the proposal to

build a new harbour in the Bay of Nigg Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

| think it is highly misleading to call this development a “harbour expansion” as this is an entirely

NEW harbour proposed for what is a much-valued natural bay.

Some local people are of the opinion that the attractive pictures of the development (which include
lots of cruise ships) produced by Aberdeen Harbour Board are simply to deflect from the fact that
this will be an industrial harbour and a scrapyard for the North Sea with the aim being to re-locate

the “dirtier” work out of the current city centre harbour.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry
people has been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help
this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the
health and wellbeing of the local community. In addition, a recent research paper* provides
evidence that accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly

lower crime rates.

(*N=tta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural

environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015)

Page 66



The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for
local people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own
large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get away from
the hustle and bustle and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises

of industry, traffic and other people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and further
up St Fittick's Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land
could be at potential risk in the future as | strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated.
Many people seem completely unaware that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and

that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of
the area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space,

such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelming message
from residents was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an
aquarium with adjacent restaurant were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this

exercise not been learned (or remembered?).

| am not against all development, but am against development that | consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, | fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor
centre to view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of

development that should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

| would also like to highlight an inaccuracy in the EIA, Volume 3, Technical Appendix 1-E, page
93, paragraph 5.206. It's stated that the nearest Balnagask residences are “approximately 500m”
from the development boundary. Using the map supplied by Aberdeen Harbour Board in Volume
2, Chapter 3: Description of the Development (page 3-3) the boundary appears to be
approximately 300m from the nearest houses in Pentland Crescent, which seems highly
significant in terms of disturbance from noise, vibration, light etc and also the potential health risks

from dust etc.

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain
bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if new
harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour °

Board) little work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed

2

Page 67



by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an

unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one's ashes in the Bay
of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the
future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security feﬁcing’?
The harbour board have been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community
Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response and this aspect does not appear to feature

in their planning application.

| am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas to four
play areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and
playpark) in St Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are
much more susceptible to air pollution than adults and | find it unacceptable that construction sites
(which are expected to generate a lot of dust) are to be sited right next to these play facilities. It is
also disappointing to note that some of the areas earmarked for construction sites have been

recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and

during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick's Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to
its north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-
quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently
used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many
pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure
walk to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of

accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to
negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and
potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for
example, the bridge is damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV
movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, | would ask

that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Page 68



Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families
and | feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm,

particularly young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed

this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional
residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue.
Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell
which will also make these traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion

problems and | cannot see an easy solution.

During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures are employed to

ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that
40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these
take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as
described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. | would be concerned if ferries were to
use the harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the
Orkney and Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow
the same route recommended for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential
routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go ahead, |

would recommend that no passenger ferries are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the
Coast Road for 18 months. | find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the
remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which
is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips
undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this already weakened road,
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the
section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access

the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood
and that there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does
flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December
2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also,

4

Page 69



just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at

around the same time.

| am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this
could lead to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As
blasting is planned, | expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences and
buildings to ensure that any damage is minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of
properties to minimise disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether this be during

construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick's Church (B-listed) and from
Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and | cannot
see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it
now appears that St Fittick's will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary”

construction areas. | am very concerned about the effect this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true
scale of the development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by
the harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area
and this harbour development will result in our residential community being almost completely
surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green
space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary construction/laydown

areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose
to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration and

confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

If we are to lose this green space to heavy industry there MUST be guaranteed, commensurate
investment in leisure facilities for local people. If the decision is to approve this development, then

this guarantee must form part of the conditions of granting approval.

IMPACT ON NATURE

| am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the
construction noise from this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the
water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it's stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be

displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during the construction phase”. | am concerned as if
5

Page 70



the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility that
they might never come back. In addition, | am concerned about the physiological effects that
drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The
dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphin\r'vatch

programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration
disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These
are already critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a

small impact on salmon migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob

them of their food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a
new harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them. The otter information in the EIA seems
scant and | recommend that this be strengthened in order to evaluate accurately the potential

impact on these mammals.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge.
This development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be
effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged
by some of the ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay

this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed -
by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore
pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would
encourage “backflow” of material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would
result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial
respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas.
Also the data on the two burns in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be incomplete
— | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, | find
this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in

the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

6

Page 71



In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible
authorities must carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the
water environment. | would expect that this development would only be given the go ahead if it
could be proven beyond reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect
on water quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this

directive and River Basin Management Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT
Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle
reversing alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is
especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As
mitigation, | would strongly suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the
harbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents
some respite. In addition, | would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the amount
of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved

soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

I would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell
and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours

from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant
odours. This harbour should not deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant
odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance

is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently
amended their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee
which “traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that this microclimate effect
has been explored in the harbour board's EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is

examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

Page 72



The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the
very least to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also like
to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected,

active areas of the harbour rather than being “always on"?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council

and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area (33‘ countryside from being built upon, to

improve its appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay
forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of

natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy
(SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful

and proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged”.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are

taken with communities ..."

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local
population does not have English as their first language, but not one document has been
produced in an alternative language, effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals from
the planning process. There are no statements in other languages on any of the documents
advising how people can source copies in their native language either. | feel that this is
discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a matter of

urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet drop has been carried out to local
homes — | consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet drops
have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish

Water (upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

8

Page 73



Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not
circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and

meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk
about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given
ample notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. |

consider this lack of engagement with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not

to allow development at any cost”.

| strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local
community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for
this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately
$40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, | believe that the economic case needs to be
revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed it

could well be a “white elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the
community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been

given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting

information that describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view,
misleading. They seem to disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the
infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a
new harbour. This must be rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have

a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so
the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four volumes

and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this is unacceptable.

9

Page 74



At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recornmended that the harbour board
arrange a public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has
not been done and | consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of
these proposals without having the chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly
recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a true debate on
the development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development costing £320

million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not

result in a deficit of that provision within the local area ..."

If this develobment goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural

space in the community. | feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

In the event of permission being granted for this development | would recommend the following
non-negotiable conditions. These are to ensure that Torry does not become a “dumping ground”
for an unpleasant harbour facility used by heavy, polluting industry as | would consider this highly

inappropriate in a densely-populated area:

1. Waste (domestic, industrial or other) of any kind will not be permitted to be stored, stockpiled
or shipped in or out of the site.

2. Incinerator ash (flue or otherwise) of any kind will not be permitted to be stored, stockpiled or

shipped in or out of the site.

3. That no vehicle traffic exceeding 5 tonnes (axial weight) associated with the new harbour be

permitted to use St Fittick's road or the coastal road (north) to Torry.

4. No recreational land belonging to ACC or otherwise designated as 'Public land' will be
developed as part of the project.

5. No breaking or similar decommissioning-related work will take place on the site.

6. No part of the Harbour Board's property (between the existing South and North Breakwaters)
can be developed for the purposes of office accommodation for third parties, leisure facilities,
conference, hotel and recreation services (including restaurants), public and private parking

services and residential accommodation.

10

Page 75



7. No part of St Fittick's Park or the adjoining playing fields/former school land will be developed

for industrial, storage or marine decommissioning purposes.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest businesses in the
world, having been founded in 1136. | therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to
hopefully/possibly attract some decommissioning work. As decommissioning work was predicted
by Oil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30 years, this seems an incredibly short active lifespan when
compared to the longevity of the Harbour Board. | would have thought that they of all people

would have avoided such a large development with such a limited lifespan.

| am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event. As recent
events in Cumbria have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year" events in just 10 years.
With climate change now widely accepted | would have thought that a much more robust

construction would have been recommended.

Various sites of archaeological interest have been identified both on and offshore in the Bay. |
would expect that these be fully catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to

construction.

| was disappointed with the "Socio Economics" chapter of the EIA. There appears to have been
very little work done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-local,
“formal” visitors to the area (for example many informal visitors come to the bay to birdwatch — as
the area is renowned for its passage migrants — and to spot dolphins). | feel this chapter does not
reflect a true picture of how the bay is utilised and valued by locals and informal visitors and to me
this is a glaring omission in this report. Sadly, it seems that more attention has been given to the

animals in the bay, rather than the humans who will have to live next to this development.

Yours faithfully

Lynn Thomson

11

Page 76



To: ms.marinelicensing@scoﬂand.gsi.gov.uk[ms.marinelicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk];

harbourorders@scotland.isi.iov.ukiharbourorders%scotland.gsi.gov.uk]; Pl[PI@aberdeencity.gov.uk];
Cc:

Subject: Bay of Nigg Harbour Development - Objections

Sent: Mon 12/14/2015 11:09:31 AM

From: STEWART, Zoe (WGPSN)

signatures=0

X-Proofpoint-Spam-Details: rule=notspam policy=default score=0 kscore.is_bulkscore=0
kscore.compositescore=1 compositescore=0.9 suspectscore=0 malwarescore=0
phishscore=0 bulkscore=0 kscore.is_spamscore=0 rbsscore=0.9 spamscore=0
urlsuspectscore=0.9 adultscore=0 classifier=scan_limit adjust=0 reason=mix
scancount=1 engine=8.0.1-1507310007 definitions=main-1512140182
X-Mailcontrol-Inbound:

2YOANS58ZL S4Af8HGgOxtLa1Yb8XQ39g4PIGC25PPYxnFBpWTVNgmINiw7UuZQPMU
X-URLSB-Wrapped: false

X-Scanned-By: MailControl 44278.411 (www.mailcontrol.com) on 10.65.0.115
Return-Path: prvs=879001ccec=zoe.stewart@woodgroup.com
X-MS-Exchange-Organization-AuthSource: MSEXCH002.acc.gov.uk
X-MS-Exchange-Organization-AuthAs: Anonymous

Categories: Misc,

Importance: High

Good Morning,

| wish to object to the Nay of Nigg Harbour development, my reasons for this are
attached.

I am a proud member of the Battle for the Bay of Nigg committee, born in Torry and
most of my family still live there, | believe the Bay of Nigg is part of my heritage and |
do not wish to see this destroyed. ' :

Sincerely

Zoe Stewart

Page 77



More suggestions for objection letters

| am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction
areas to four play areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground,
basketball court and playpark) in St Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply
demonstrated that children are much more susceptiblie to air pollution than adults
and | find it unacceptable that a construction site (which is expected to generate a lot
of dust) is to be sited next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that
some of the areas earmarked for construction areas have been recently planted with

native trees.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The
overwhelming message from residents was that we needed attractions to draw
people into the area (at that time an aquarium with adjacent restaurant were
proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been learned
(or remembered?).

| am not against all development, but am against development that | consider
unsustainable and disproportionate. For example, | fully support the Greyhope Bay
project which envisaged a visitor centre to view the dolphins with an attached coffee
shop. This seems to me to belfjust the kind of development that should be '
encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest
businesses in the world, having been founded in 1136. | therefore find it odd that

they want to build a facility to hopefully/possibly attract some decommissioning work.

As decommissioning work was predicted by Oil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30
years, this seems an incredibly short active lifespan when compared to the longevity
of the Harbour Board. | would have thought that they of all people would have
avoided such a large development with such a limited lifespan.

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not
known to flood and that there is no history of landslide. From personal knowledge of
the site, | beg to differ on both these points. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded
quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December
2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on

Page 78

o =



the road. Also, just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after the ruined bothy)
there was a large landslide at around the same time.

I am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this
area, that this could lead to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section
of Greyhope Road. As blasting is planned, | expect that there will be robust seismic
monitoring of nearby residences aﬁd buildings to ensure that any damage is
minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to minimise
disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether this be during construction or
operation of the harbour.

I am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event.
As recent events in Cumbria have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year"
events in just 10 years. With climate change now widely accepted | would have
thought that a much more robust construction would have been recommended.

In previous documentation, there has been mention of ferries using the new harbour,
however there is no mention of‘these in the EIA, as far as | can see. | would be
concerned if ferries were to use the harbour, primarily because of the additional
traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and Shetland ferries both carry
around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route
recommended for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential
routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go
ahead, | would recommend that no passenger ferries are permitted to use it.

Various sites of archaeological interest have been identified both on and offshore in
the Bay. | would expect that these be fully catalogued and documented before they
are lost forever to construction.

I was disappointed with the "Socio Economics" chapter of the EIA. There appears to
have been very little work done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter
seems to focus on non-local visitors to the area. | feel this does not reflect a true
picture of how the bay is utilised by locals and to me this is a glaring omission in this
report. Sadly, it seems that more attention has been given to the animals in the bay,
rather than the humans who will have to live next to this development.

Page 79



NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health
of Torry people has been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this
development will not help this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible,
green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local community. In
addition, a recent research paper* provides evidence that accessible, green spaces

also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure
resource for local people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city,
Torry does not have its own large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few
areas in Torry where you can get away from the hustle and bustle and hear nothing
but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of industry, traffic and
other people.
The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping
further and further up St Fittick's Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what
land will be lost and what land could be at potential risk in the future as | strongly feel
that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem completely unaware
that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be
taken over as a temporary construction area.
Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome
development of the area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across
more of Torry's green space, such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close
proximity to Tullos Primary School.

*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural
environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers,
mountain bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be
completely inaccessible if new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact

Page 80



Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to have been
undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL population
who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an unacceptable
oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one's
ashes in the Bay of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will
people pay their respects in the future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded
by nine and a half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have been asked
about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to
provide an adequate response and this aspect does not appear to feature in their
planning application.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the
construction and during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay
Golf Club to its north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for
pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and
rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used 'by pedestrians and people
accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who
would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure walk
to the river/coast which along with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk
of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast
Road and have to negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to
further congestion, delays and potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse
or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge is damaged by a
heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended
until the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, | would ask that no
harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Page 81



Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is
frequented by families and | feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the

safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young children.
Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council ~ if
traffic routed this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to
gridiock.
Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of
additional residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will
exacerbate this issue. Various high-density housing has been recently completed or
is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems
worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and | cannot see
an easy solution.
During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures
are employed to ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry,
including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is
proposed that 40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers.

Which routes would these take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same

risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdieness
Lighthouse to the Coast Road for 18 months. | find this unacceptable as this
effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic
heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width
road narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in
recent years. This will place additional stress on this already weakened road,
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for
this? If the section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and
emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the

Girdleness Lighthouse?

VISUAL APPEARANCE

Page 82



There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick's Church (B-listed)
and from Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly
affected and | cannot see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on
this iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick's will be very closely
surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction areas. | am very concerned
about the effect this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my
opinion, the true scale of the development has not been accurately reflected in the

. glossy literature produced by the harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural
green spaces in a densely-populated area and this harbour development will result in
our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry,
congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green space in
Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary construction/laydown
areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour
board propose to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to
have accurate illustration and confirmation of these before any permissions are
granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

| am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as
the construction noise from this development will on occasion, travel several
kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it’s stated that our
“bottienose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area
during the construction phase”. | am concerned as if the dolphins are displaced for
the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility that they might never
come back. In addition, | am concerned about the physiological effects that drilling,
blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The
dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the
Dolphinwatch programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its
migration disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel

Page 83



colonies in River Dee. These are already critically elndangered and under further

pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon migration

patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource f_or birds, particularly ducks. The
dredging would rob them of their food sources and the disturbance caused by the

construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The

development of a new harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and
curved sedge. This development threatens these plants. There must be a robust
plan in place and this must be effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing
survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the ground drilling
works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is
quickly dispersed by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce
this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also,
dredging to create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of material from nearby
outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result in increased Biological
Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the
harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also
the data on the two burns in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be
incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some
tables as “>5": again, | find this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of
poliutants in the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not

already been undertaken.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

Page 84

—— e




The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly
from vehicle reversing alarms and work when loading/unioading containers as well
as engine noise. This is especially troublesome during the night when the noise is
sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly suggest working
hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours
with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents some respite. In addition, |
would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the amount of noise
transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved
soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

I would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there;
are no smell and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had
to live with the odours from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and :
deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This harbour should not deal in :
any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and the |
harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smell/ffume nuisance is not

generated there either.

|
|
It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have 3
recently amended their modelling systems to take account of a *barrier” effect |
created by the River Dee which “traps” odour and poliution in the Torry area. | do not.
believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the harbour board’s EIA. If |

this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect
these at the very least to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local
residents. | would also like to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high.
Could lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour rather than being
“always on"?

Page 85



VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen

City Council and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being
built upon, to improve its appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to

enjoy it.
| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg.
The bay forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to

the fragmentation of natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish
Planning Policy (SPP) and Pilanning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early,
meaningful and proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique

circumstances are encouraged”.
Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate
steps are taken with communities ..."

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the
local population does not have English as their first language, but not one document
has been produced in an alternative language, effectively excluding a significant
proportion of locals from the planning process. There are no statements in other
languages on any of the documents advising how people can source copies in their
native language either. | feel that this is discrimination against this section of the
local population and should be addressed as a matter of urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leafiet drop has been
carried out to local homes — | consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to
cost £320 million. Leaflet drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City
Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at

Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

Page 86




Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen
Citizen) this is not circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of
consideration towards appropriate and meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December
2015 to talk about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite
being invited and given ample notice the harbour board did not attend in person but
submitted a brief statement instead. | consider this lack of engagement with Jocals to
be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right
place,; it is not to allow development at any cost”.

I strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for
the local community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of
the economic case for this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel.
With oil now being approximately $40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, |
believe that the economic case needs to be revisited at the very least and revised as
necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white
elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For
many in the community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale,
however we have been given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely
supporting information that describes ... the implications of the proposal’.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in
my view, misleading. They seem to disguise the true scale of this development and
lack detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing
etc) that will be associated with a new harbour. This must be rectified as a matter of

Page 87



urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of this
development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early
November, so the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As
this document is four volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this is

unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the
harbour board arrange a public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the
development. To date, this has not been done and | consider this a serious
oversight. How do people know all the implications of these proposals without having
the chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly recommend that a public
meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a true debate on the
development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a development
costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ...
will not result in a deficit of that provision within the local area ...”

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of
accessible natural space in the community. | feel that this is in contravention of

paragraph 230.

Page 88



Dear Sir/Madam —

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR
DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to
build a new harbour in the Bay of Nigg Aberdeen. My reasons for
objecting are listed below.

| think it is highly misleading to call this development a “harbour
expansion” as this is an entirely NEW harbour proposed for what is
a much-valued natural bay.

Some local people are of the opinion that the attractive pictures of
the development (which include lots of cruise ships) produced by
Aberdeen Harbour Board are simply to deflect from the fact that
this will be an industrial harbour and a scrapyard for the North Sea
with the aim being to re-locate the “dirtier” work from the current
city centre harbour.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the
public. The health of Torry people has been shown to be worse
than many other areas of city — this development will not help this
as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible, green
spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local
community. In addition, a recent research paper* provides
evidence that accessible, green spaces also contribute to more
social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

(*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The
links among contact with natural environments, community
cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015)

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free,
accessible leisure resource for local people which cannot be
replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its
own large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in
Torry where you can get away from the hustle and bustle and hear
nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises
of industry, traffic and other people.

Page 89



The “land take” associated with this development seems to have
been creeping further and further up St Fittick’s Road. We need to
be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land
could be at potential risk in the future as | strongly feel that this has
not be clearly communicated. Many people seem completely
unaware that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and
that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction
area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to
further unwelcome development of the area, by strengthening the
case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space,
such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to
Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in
Torry. The overwhelming message from residents was that we
needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an
aquarium with adjacent restaurant were proposed) not more
industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been learned (or
remembered?).

| am not against all development, but am against development that
| consider unsustainable and disproportionate. For example, | fully
support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor centre
to view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to
me to be just the kind of development that should be encouraged
in the area instead of heavy industry.

| would also like to highlight an inaccuracy in the EIA, Volume 3,
Technical Appendix 1-E, page 53, paragraph 5.206. It’s stated that
the nearest Balnagask residences are “approximately 500m” from
the development boundary. Using the map supplied by Aberdeen
Harbour Board in Volume 2, Chapter 3: Description of the
Development (page 3-3) the boundary appears to be
approximately 300m from the nearest houses in Pentland
Crescent, which seems highly significant in terms of disturbance
from noise, vibration, light etc and also the potential health risks
from dust etc.

Page 90



COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers,
paragliders, dog walkers, mountain bikers, anglers, kayakers,
surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if
new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact
Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to
have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and
viewed by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this
development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their
loved one’s ashes in the Bay of Nigg (the area has a strong
seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the
future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a
half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have been
asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community
Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response and this
aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application.

I am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development
and the construction areas to four play areas for children (the
skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and
playpark) in St Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply
demonstrated that children are much more susceptible to air
pollution than adults and | find it unacceptable that construction
sites (which are expected to generate a lot of dust) are to be sited
right next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that
some of the areas earmarked for construction sites have been
recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created
both during the construction and during the operation of this new
harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road
from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north junction with Greyhope
Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-
quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour
“rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people

Page 91



accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many
pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could
instead use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which
along with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of
accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter
width Coast Road and have to negotiate the tight bends at the
railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and
potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident).
What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge is damaged by
a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV
movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again?
For safety reasons, | would ask that no harbour HGVs would be
permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This
facility is frequented by families and | feel that an increase in traffic
will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly
young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to
Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed this way as suggested by
Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridiock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A
large number of additional residences are being built at its
southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue.
Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is
planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these traffic
problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion
problems and | cannot see an easy solution.

During construction and operation, | would request that strict
mitigation measures are employed to ensure that harbour traffic
does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.
The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships.
In the EIA, it is proposed that 40 luxury coaches would be needed
to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these take?
The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the
Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

Page 92



There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. | would
be concemed if ferries were to use the harbour, primarily because
of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the
Orkney and Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would
these cars be expected to follow the same route recommended for
HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential routes
through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this
harbour does go ahead, | would recommend that no passenger
ferries are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from
Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for 18 months. | find this
unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the
remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having
to U-tum and head back) which is a three-quarter width road
narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips
undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on
this already weakened road, increasing the likelihood of further
serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the section
of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and
emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and the houses
adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that
Greyhope Road is not known to flood and that there is no history of
landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does
flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park
during storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand,
pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just
along the coastal path (about 100 metres after the ruined bothy)
there was a large landslide at around the same time.

I am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock
blasting in this area, that this could lead to further landslides and
potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As blasting
is planned, | expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of
nearby residences and buildings to ensure that any damage is
minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to

Page 93



minimise disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether
this be during construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s
Church (B-listed) and from Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St
Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and | cannot see
any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this
iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s will be
very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction
areas. | am very concerned about the effect this will have on this
vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of
the bay. In my opinion, the true scale of the development has not
been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by the
harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a
densely-populated area and this harbour development will result in
our residential community being almost completely surrounded by

" industry, congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the
remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be
taken up by temporary construction/laydown areas, further
disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or
how the harbour board propose to reinstate the temporary
construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration
and confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

If we are to lose this green space to heavy industry there MUST be
guaranteed, commensurate investment in leisure facilities for local
people. If the decision is to approve this development, then this
guarantee must form part of the conditions of granting approval.
IMPACT ON NATURE

| am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of
Conservation as the construction noise from this development will
on occasion, travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA
Volume 4, page 107 it’s stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is
assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during
the construction phase”. | am concerned as if the dolphins are

Page 94



displaced for the duration of construction (three years) there is a
possibility that they might never come back. In addition, | am
concerned about the physiological effects that drilling, blasting,
piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine
mammals. The dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a
positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphinwatch programme
organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic
salmon could have its migration disrupted which could impact on
life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These
are already critically endangered and under further pressure from
filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon migration
patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly
ducks. The dredging would rob them of their food sources and the
disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.
Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the
EIA. The development of a new harbour is unlikely to have a
positive effect on them. The otter information in the EIA seems
scant and | recommend that this be strengthened in order to
evaluate accurately the potential impact on these mammals.
Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea,
oyster plant and curved sedge. This development threatens these
plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be
effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their
habitat has already been damaged by some of the ground drilling
works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay
this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however
this pollution is quickly dispersed by the waves. The construction
of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore
pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to
create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of material from
nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result in
increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for

Page 95



anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the consequent
production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on
the two burns in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to
be incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD
is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, | find this lack of robust
data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the
potential build up of pollutants in the harbour and the possibility of
anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework
Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities must carry out their
statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the
water environment. | would expect that this development would
only be given the go ahead if it could be proven beyond
reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative
effect on water quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-
compliant with the objectives of this directive and River Basin
Management Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from
this, particularly from vehicle reversing alarms and work when
loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is
especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient
to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly suggest
working hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be
confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends to give
local residents some respite. In addition, | would request that
robust measures be taken to minimise the amount of noise
transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping
measures or improved soundproofing for homes adjacent to the
bay?

Smell and fumes

| would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to
ensure that there are no smell and fumes issuing from the harbour.
The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours from the

Page 96



Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a
life free from unpleasant odours. This harbour should not deal in
any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant
odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be maintained in such
a way that smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor
Rob Jackson have recently amended their modelling systems to
take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee which
“traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that
this microclimate effect has been explored in the harbour board’s
EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined
as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet
high. | would expect these at the very least to be directional and
dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also like
to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high. Could
lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour rather
than being “always on™?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park,
erected by Aberdeen City Council and several partner
organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside
‘from being built upon, to improve its appearance and to offer
everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise
about the Bay of Nigg. The bay forms an important part of our local
environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of natural
habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit
of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and Planning Advice Note
3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between
stakeholders should be early, meaningful and proportionate.

Page 97



Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are
encouraged”.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate
and proportionate steps are taken with communities ...”

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development.
Approximately 15% of the local population does not have English
as their first language, but not one document has been produced in
an alternative language, effectively excluding a significant
proportion of locals from the planning process. There are no
statements in other languages on any of the documents advising
how people can source copies in their native language either. | feel
that this is discrimination against this section of the local
population and should be addressed as a matter of urgency.
Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet
drop has been carried out to local homes — | consider this
unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet
drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen-City Council
(Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at
Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.
Although the development was advertised in a local free
newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not circulated in the Torry
area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards
appropriate and meaningful consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show
on 4 December 2015 to talk about the Bay of Nigg (show was
scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given ample
notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a
brief statement instead. | consider this lack of engagement with
locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right
development in the right place; it is not to allow development at
any cost”.

| strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly
outweigh the benefits for the local community and that our voices
have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for
this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With

Page 98



oil now being approximately $40 a barrel and predicted to
decrease further, | believe that the economic case needs to be
revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if
this new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white elephant”
and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces
in Torry. For many in the community, this development is
inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been
given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good
quality and timely supporting information that describes ... the
implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the
local press are in my view, misleading. They seem to disguise the
true scale of this development and lack detail on all the
infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing etc)
that will be associated with a new harbour. This must be rectified
as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have a
true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly
available in early November, so the public have the statutory
minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four
volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, | feel that this is
unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was
recommended that the harbour board arrange a public meeting to
enable the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has
not been done and | consider this a serious oversight. How do
people know all the implications of these proposals without having
the chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly
recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of
urgency to allow a true debate on the development. | think this is a
wholly proportionate response to a development costing £320
million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as
green infrastructure ... will not result in a deficit of that provision

Page 99



within the local area ..."

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the
amount of accessible natural space in the community. | feel that
this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

In the event of permission being granted for this development |
would recommend the following non-negotiable conditions. These
are to ensure that Torry does not become a “dumping ground” for
an unpleasant harbour facility used by heavy, polluting industry as
I would consider this highly inappropriate in a densely-populated
area:

1. Waste (domestic, industrial or other) of any kind will not be
permitted to be stored, stockpiled or shipped in or out of the site.
2. Incinerator ash (flue or otherwise) of any kind will not be
permitted to be stored, stockpiled or shipped in or out of the site.
3. That no vehicle traffic exceeding 5 tonnes (axial weight)
associated with the new harbour be permitted to use St Fittick’s
road.or the coastal road (north) to Torry.

4. No recreational land belonging to ACC or otherwise designated
as 'Public land' will be developed as part of the project.

5. No breaking or similar decommissioning-related work will take
place on the site.

6. No part of the Harbour Board’s property (between the existing
South and North Breakwaters) can be developed for the purposes
of office accommodation for third parties, leisure facilities,
conference, hotel and recreation services (including restaurants),
public and private parking services and residential
accommodation.

7. No part of St Fittick's Park or the adjoining playing fields/former
school land will be developed for industrial, storage or Marine
decommissioning purposes.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one
of the oldest businesses in the world, having been founded in
1136. | therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to
hopefully/possibly attract some decommissioning work. As

Page 100



decommissioning work was predicted by Oil and Gas UK in 2013
to last for 30 years, this seems an incredibly short active lifespan
when compared to the longevity of the Harbour Board. | would
have thought that they of all people would have avoided such a
large development with such a limited lifespan.

| am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100
year storm event. As recent events in Cumbria have shown, they
have experienced two "1 in 100 year" events in just 10 years. With
climate change now widely accepted | would have thought thata
much more robust construction would have been recommended.
Various sites of archaeological interest have been identified both
on and offshore in the Bay. | would expect that these be fully
catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to
construction.

| was disappointed with the "Socio Economics" chapter of the EIA.
There appears to have been very little work done on how locals
use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-local,
“formal” visitors to the area (for example many informal visitors
come to the bay to birdwatch — as the area is renowned for its
passage migrants — and to spot dolphins). | feel this chapter does
not reflect a true picture of how the bay is utilised and valued by
locals and informal visitors and to me this is a glaring omission in
this report. Sadly, it seems that more attention has been given to
the animals in the bay, rather than the humans who will have to
live next to this development.

Yours faithfully

Renée Slater

2 Walker Place

Torr

Aberdeen AB11 8BQ

Page 101



PI

From: -]
Sent: 14 December 2015 22:23

To: PI

Subject: Comments on harbour plan

Dear SirlMadam

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay of Nigg
Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

| think itis highly misleading to call this development a “harbour expansion” as this is an entirely NEW harbour
proposed for what is a much-valued natural bay.

Some local people are of the opinion that the attractive pictures of the development (which include lots of cruise
ships) produced by Aberdeen Harbour Board are simply to deflect from the fact that this will be an industrial
harbour and a scrapyard for the North Sea with the aim being to re-locate the “dirtier” work from the current city
centre harbour.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry people has been
shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help this as there is a lot of
research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local
community. In addition, a recent research paper® provides evidence that accessible, green spaces also
contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

(*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural environments,
community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015)

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for local people
which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own large park or similar
facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get away from the hustle and bustle and hear
nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of industry, traffic and other people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and further up St Fittick's
Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land could be at potential risk in
the future as | strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem completely unaware
that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary
construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the area, by
strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry's green space, such as the recently-
restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelming message from residents
was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an aquarium with adjacent restaurant
were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been learned (or remembered?).

| am not against all development, but am against development that | consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, | fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor centre to view
the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of development that should be
encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

| would also like to highlight an inaccuracy in the EIA, Volume 3, Technical Appendix 1-E, page 53, paragraph
5.206. It's stated that the nearest Balnagask residences are “approximately 500m” from the development
boundary. Using the map supplied by Aberdeen Harbour Board in Volume 2, Chapter 3: Description of the
Development (page 3-3) the boundary appears to be approximately 300m from the nearest houses in Pentland
Crescent, which seems highly significant in terms of disturbance from noise, vibration, light etc and also the
potential health risks from dust etc.

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES
The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain bikers, anglers,
kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if new harbour goes ahead. From the

1

Page 102



Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to have been undertaken
to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this
development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay of Nigg (lhe
area has a slrong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the future when the bay is
inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have been asked
about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response
and this aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application.

| am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas to four play areas for
children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and playpark) in St Fittick's Community
Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are much more susceptible to air pollution than adults
and | find it unacceptable that construction sites (which are expected to generate a lot of dust) are to be sited
right next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that some of the areas earmarked for
construction sites have been recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during the
operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick's Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north
junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road,
already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people
accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked to the
Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the increased
traffic, significantly worsens the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to negotiate the
tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and potentially damage to the
bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge is damaged by a
heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is declared
safe again? For safety reasons, | would ask that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential
streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families and | feel
that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed this way as
suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional residences are
being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue. Various high-density housing
has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems
worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and | cannot see an easy solution.

During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures are employed to ensure that
harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that 40 luxury
coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these take? The same as the
HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. | would be concerned if ferries were to use the
harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and Shetland
ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route recommended for
HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of
accident? If this harbour does go ahead, | would recommend that no passenger ferries are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for 18
months. | find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e.
traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single
carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this
already weakened road, increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this?
If the section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access the Torry
Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood and that
there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded quite
badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand,

2

Page 103



pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after
the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at around the same time.

| am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this could lead to
further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As blasting is planned, | expect that
there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences and buildings to ensure that any damage is
minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to minimise disturbance and damage caused
by vibration, whether this be during construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick's Church (B-listed) and from Girdleness
Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and | cannot see any potential to
mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick's will be
very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction areas. | am very concerned about the effect
this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true scale of the
development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by the harbour board. The bay
is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area and this harbour development will result in
our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In
addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary
construction/laydown areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose to reinstate
the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration and confirmation of these
before any permissions are granted.

If we are to lose this green space to heavy industry there MUST be guaranteed, commensurate investment in
leisure facilities for local people. If the decision is to approve this development, then this guarantee must form
part of the conditions of granting approval.

IMPACT ON NATURE

| am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the construction noise from
this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107
it's stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during the
construction phase”. | am concerned as if the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three
years) there is a possibility that they might never come back. In addition, | am concerned about the physiological
effects that drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The dolphins
have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphinwatch programme organised by
the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration disrupted which
could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These are already critically
endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon migration
patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob them of their
food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a new harbour is
unlikely to have a positive effect on them. The otter information in the EIA seems scant and | recommend that
this be strengthened in order to evaluate accurately the potential impact on these mammals.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge. This
development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be effectively
implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the ground
drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed by the waves.
The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could build up in bay
and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of material from nearby
outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and
the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly
hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the two burns in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be
incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, | find
this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in the harbour and
the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already.been undertaken.

3

Page 104



In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities must
carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the water environment. | would expect
that this development would only be given the go ahead if it could be proven beyond reasonable doubt that the
new harbour would not have a negative effect on water quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant
with the objectives of this directive and River Basin Management Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle reversing alarms
and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is especially troublesome during the
night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly suggest working hours
(both construction and operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends
to give local residents some respite. In addition, | would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the
amount of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved soundproofing
for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

I would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell and fumes
issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours from the Wastewater
Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This harbour should not
‘deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be
maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently amended their
modelling systems to take account of a "barrier” effect created by the River Dee which “traps” odour and
pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the harbour board's
EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the propased development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the very least to be
directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also like to ask is there a reason why
they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour rather than being
“always on"?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES
There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council and several
partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to improve its
appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay forms an important
part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY
It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and
Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and
proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged”.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are taken with
communities ..."

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local population does not
have English as their first language, but not one document has been produced in an alternative language,
effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals.from the planning process. There are no statements in
other languages on any of the documents advising how people can source copies in their native language
either. | feel that this is discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a
matter of urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet drop has been carried out to local homes — |
consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet drops have recently been
undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at
Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not circulated in
the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and meaningful consultation with
locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk about the Bay of
Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given ample notice the harbour board did

4

Page 105



not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. | consider this lack of engagement with locals to be
unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not to allow
development at any cost”.

| strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local community and that
our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for this development was made when
oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately $40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, |
believe that the economic case needs to be revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this
new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.
The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the community, this
development is inapprepriate in its location and scale, however we have been given little opportunity to have our
voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting information that
describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view, misleading. They
seem to disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the infrastructure (e.qg. car parks,
welfare blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a new harbour. This must be rectified as a
matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so the public have
the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four volumes and is estimated to weigh
25kg, | feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour board arrange a
public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has not been done and |
consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of these proposals without having the
chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly recommend that a public meeting is organised as a
matter of urgency to allow a true debate on the development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a
development costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not result in a deficit of
that provision within the local area ..."

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural space in the
community. | feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

IF PERMISSION IS GRANTED

In the event of permission being granted for this development | would recommend the following non-negotiable
conditions. These are to ensure that Torry does not become a "dumping ground” for an unpleasant harbour
facility used by heavy, polluting industry as | would consider this highly inappropriate in a densely-populated
area:

1. Waste (domestic, industrial or other) of any kind will not be permitted to be stored, stockpiled or shipped in or
out of the site.

2. Incinerator ash (flue or otherwise) of any kind will not be permitted to be stored, stockpiled or shipped in or
out of the site.

3. That no vehicle traffic exceeding 5 tonnes (axial weight) associated with the new harbour be permitted to use
St Fittick’s road or the coastal road (north) to Torry.

4. No recreational land belonging to ACC or otherwise designated as 'Public land' will be developed as part of
the project.

5. No breaking or similar decommissioning-related work will take place on the site.

6. No part of the Harbour Board's property (between the existing South and North Breakwaters) can be
developed for the purposes of office accommodation for third parties, leisure facilities, conference, hotel and
recreation services (including restaurants), public and private parking services and residential accommodation.
7. No part of St Fittick's Park or the adjoining playing fields/former school land will be developed for industrial,
storage or Marine decommissioning purposes.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest businesses in the world, having
been founded in 1136. | therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to hopefully/possibly attract some
decommissioning work. As decommissioning work was predicted by Qil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30 years,
this seems an incredibly short active lifespan when compared to the longevity of the Harbour Board. | would
have thought that they of all people would have avoided such a large development with such a limited lifespan.

| am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event. As recent events in Cumbria
have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year" events in just 10 years. With climate change now widely
accepted | would have thought that a much more robust construction would have been recommended.

5

Page 106



Various sites of archaeological interest have been identified both on and offshore in the Bay. | would expect that
these be fully catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to construction.

| was disappointed with the "Socio Economics” chapter of the EIA. There appears to have been very little work
done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-local, “formal” visitors to the area
(for example many informal visitors come to the bay to birdwatch — as the area is renowned for its passage
migrants — and to spot dolphins). | feel this chapter does not reflect a true picture of how the bay is utilised and
valued by locals and informal visitors and to me this is a glaring omission in this report. Sadly, it seems that
more attention has been given to the animals in the bay, rather than the humans who will have to live next to
this development.

Also as a dog trainer | worry about all the green space you are planning on taking away from the one area that
residents have to exercise their dogs.

We already have alot of reactive dogs in the area and if you take this space away and leave these dogs to have
to be walked on the street you raise the likelihood for dog incidents and possible dogs being rehomed because
of it. This is a potential major problem that's being overlooked

Yours faithfully
J Butler
Torry resident

Sent from my Samsung device

Page 107



PI

From: —

Sent: 14 December 2015 23:07

To: ms.marinelicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; ms.marinelicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk;
PI

Subject: OBJECTION TO BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

Attachments: OBJECTION TO BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR
DEVELOPMENT.docx

I would appreciate receipt of this email.

Lesley-Anne Mulholland
Dee Cottage

60 Abbey Road

Torry Aberdeen

AB11 9PE

14/12/15

Dear Sir/Madam
BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

I am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay of Nigg
Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

I think it is highly misleading to call this development a “harbour expansion™ as this is an entirely NEW
harbour proposed for what is a much-valued natural bay.

Some local people are of the opinion that the attractive pictures of the development (which include lots of
cruise ships) produced by Aberdeen Harbour Board are simply to deflect from the fact that this will be an
industrial harbour and a scrapyard for the North Sea with the aim being to re-locate the “dirtier” work from
the current city centre harbour.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry people has
been shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help this as there is a lot
of research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local
community. In addition, a recent research paper* provides evidence that accessible, green spaces also
contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

(*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural
environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015)

1

Page 108



The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for local
people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own large park or
similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get away from the hustle and bustle
and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of industry, traffic and other
people.

The “land take™ associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and further up St
Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land could be at
potential risk in the future as I strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem
completely unaware that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken
over as a temporary construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the area,
by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green space, such as the recently-
restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelming message from
residents was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an aquarium with adjacent
restaurant were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been learned (or
remembered?).

v

I am not against all development, but am against development that I consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, I fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor centre to
view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of development that
should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

I would also like to highlight an inaccuracy in the EIA, Volume 3, Technical Appendix 1-E, page 53,
paragraph 5.206. It’s stated that the nearest Balnagask residences are “approximately 500m” from the
development boundary. Using the map supplied by Aberdeen Harbour Board in Volume 2, Chapter 3:
Description of the Development (page 3-3) the boundary appears to be approximately 300m from the
nearest houses in Pentland Crescent, which seems highly significant in terms of disturbance from noise,
vibration, light etc and also the potential health risks from dust etc.

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain bikers,
anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers ete. This area will be completely inaccessible if new harbour goes
ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to
have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL population who will have
to live next to this development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay of Nigg
(the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the future when the
bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have
been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to provide an
adequate response and this aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application.

I am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas to four play
areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and playpark) in St Fittick's
Community Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are much more susceptible to air pollution
than adults and I find it unacceptable that construction sites (which are expected to generate a lot of dust)
are to be sited right next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that some of the areas
earmarked for construction sites have been recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

[ am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during
the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north
Junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road,
already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and
people accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked

2

Page 109



to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the
increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to negotiate
the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and potentially damage to
the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge is damaged
by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is
declared safe again? For safety reasons, I would ask that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the
residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families and 1
feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young
children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed this way
as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional residences are
being built at its southern end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue. Various high-density
housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these
traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and I cannot see an easy
solution.

During construction and operation, I would request that strict mitigation measures are employed to ensure
that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that 40 luxury
coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these take? The same as the
HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. I would be concerned if ferries were to use the
harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and
Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route
recommended for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential routes through Torry, thereby
increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go ahead, I would recommend that no passenger ferries
are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for
18 months. I find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope
Road (i.c. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width road
narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in recent years. This will place
additional stress on this already weakened road, increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What
mitigation is proposed for this? If the section of Greyhope Road left open does fail how will people (and
emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood and that
there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded quite
badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand,
pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after
the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at around the same time.

I am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this could lead
to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As blasting is planned, |
expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences and buildings to ensure that any
damage is minimised. I would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to minimise disturbance and
damage caused by vibration, whether this be during construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE :

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s Church (B-listed) and from Girdleness
Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and I cannot see any potential to
mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s

3

Page 110



will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction areas. | am very concerned about
the effect this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true scale of
the development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by the harbour board.
The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area and this harbour development
will result in our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry, congested roads
and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be
taken up by temporary construction/laydown areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose to
reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration and confirmation
of these before any permissions are granted.

If we are to lose this green space to heavy industry there MUST be guaranteed, commensurate investment in
leisure facilities for local people. If the decision is to approve this development, then this guarantee must
form part of the conditions of granting approval.

IMPACT ON NATURE

I am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the construction noise
from this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4,
page 107 it’s stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay
arca during the construction phase”. I am concerned as if the dolphins are displaced for the duration of
construction (three years) there is a possibility that they might never come back. In addition, I am concerned
about the physiological effects that drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other
marine mammals. The dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the
Dolphin watch programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its migration disrupted
which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These are already
critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon
migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob them of
their food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a new harbour
is unlikely to have a positive effect on them. The otter information in the EIA seems scant and I recommend
that this be strengthened in order to evaluate accurately the potential impact on these mammals.

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea. oyster plant and curved sedge. This
development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be effectively
implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the
ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed by the
waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could build
up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of material
from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result in increased Biological Oxygen
Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the consequent
production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the two burns in the Environmental
Impact Assessment appears to be incomplete — I consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted
in some tables as “>5": again, I find this lack of robust data unacceptable.

[ would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in the
harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities
must carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the water environment. |
would expect that this development would only be given the go ahead if it could be proven beyond

4

Page 111



reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect on water quality, otherwise this
would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this directive and River Basin Management
Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle reversing
alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is especially troublesome
during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, I would strongly
suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours with
reduced hours at weekends to give local residents some respite. In addition, I would request that robust
measures be taken to minimise the amount of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping
measures or improved soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

[ would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell and fumes
issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours from the Wastewater
Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This harbour should not
deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and the harbour itself should
be maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently amended their
modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee which “traps™ odour and
pollution in the Torry area. I do not believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the harbour
board’s EIA. If this is the case, I strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the very least to
be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. I would also like to ask is there a
reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour
rather than being “always on™?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES
There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council and
several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to improve its
appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

[ hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay forms an
important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY
It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and
Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “*Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and
proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged™.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are taken with
communities ...”

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local population does
not have English as their first language, but not one document has been produced in an alternative language,
effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals from the planning process. There are no statements
in other languages on any of the documents advising how people can source copies in their native language
either. I feel that this is discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as
a matter of urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet drop has been carried out to local homes — [
consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet drops have recently been
undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at
Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

5

Page 112



Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not circulated
in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and meaningful
consultation with locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk about the Bay
of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given ample notice the harbour
board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. 1 consider this lack of engagement
with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not to allow
development at any cost”.

I strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local community
and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for this development was
made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately $40 a barrel and predicted to
decrease further, [ believe that the economic case needs to be revisited at the very least and revised as
necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white elephant” and we will have
lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry, For many in the community,
this development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been given little opportunity to
have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting information that
describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view, misleading.
They seem to disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car
parks, welfare blocks, security fencing ete) that will be associated with a new harbour. This must be
rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of this
development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so the public
have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four volumes and is estimated to
weigh 25kg, 1 feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour board arrange a
public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has not been done and |
consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of these proposals without
having the chance to discuss them meaningfully? I would strongly recommend that a public meeting is
organised as a matter of urgency to allow a true debate on the development. [ think this is a wholly
proportionate response to a development costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not result in a
deficit of that provision within the local area ...”

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural space in the
community. I feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

[F PERMISSION IS GRANTED
In the event of permission being granted for this development I would recommend the following non-
negotiable conditions. These are to ensure that Torry does not become a “dumping ground” for an
unpleasant harbour facility used by heavy, polluting industry as I would consider this highly inappropriate
in a densely-populated area:
1. Waste (domestic, industrial or other) of any kind will not be permitted to be stored, stockpiled or shipped
in or out of the site.
2. Incinerator-ash (flue or otherwise) of any kind will not be permitted to be stored, stockpiled or shipped in
or out of the site.
3. That no vehicle traffic exceeding 5 tonnes (axial weight) associated with the new harbour be permitted to
use St Fittick’s road or the coastal road (north) to Torry.
4. No recreational land belonging to ACC or otherwise designated as 'Public land' will be developed as part
of the project. '
5. No breaking or similar decommissioning-related work will take place on the site.
6. No part of the Harbour Board’s property (between the existing South and North Breakwaters) can be

6

Page 113



developed for the purposes of office accommodation for third parties, leisure facilities, conference. hotel
and recreation services (including restaurants), public and private parking services and residential
accommodation.

7. No part of St Fittick's Park or the adjoining playing ficlds/former school land will be developed for
industrial, storage or Marine decommissioning purposes.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest businesses in the world.
having been founded in 1136. I therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to hopefully/possibly
attract some decommissioning work. As decommissioning work was predicted by Oil and Gas UK in 2013
to last for 30 years, this seems an incredibly short active lifespan when compared to the longevity of the
Harbour Board. I would have thought that they of all people would have avoided such a large development
with such a limited lifespan.

I'am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event. As recent events in
Cumbria have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year" events in just 10 vears. With climate
change now widely accepted I would have thought that a much more robust construction would have been
recommended.

Various sites of archaeological interest have been identified both on and offshore in the Bay. I would expect
that these be fully catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to construction.

I'was disappointed with the "Socio Economics” chapter of the EIA. There appears to have been very little
work done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-local, “formal” visitors to
the area (for example many informal visitors come to the bay to bird watch — as the area is renowned for its
passage migrants — and to spot dolphins). I feel this chapter does not reflect a true picture of how the bay is
utilised and valued by locals and informal visitors and to me this is a glaring omission in this report.

In addition to this I do not believe that Torry would benefit economically form any such development.
Yours faithfully

Lesley-Anne Mulholland

Page 114



PI

From: Jan Stewart

Sent: 14 December 2015 22:49

To: PI

Subject: BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT
Dear Sir/Madam

1am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build a new harbour in the Bay of Nigg Aberdeen. My reasons
for objecting are listed below.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry people has been shown to be worse
than many other areas of city — this development will not help this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible, green
spaces.are beneficial to the health and well-being of the local community. In addition, a recent research paper (* see details below)
provides evidence that accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates. The Bay
of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for local people which cannot be replaced.
Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry
where you can get away from the hustle and bustle and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of
industry, traffic and other people. The “land take™ associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and
further up St Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land could be at potential risk in
the future as I strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem completely unaware that the golf practice
area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction area. Also, if this development
goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be
built across more of Torry’s green space, such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary

School. Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real” event held in Torry. The overwhelming message from residents was that we
needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an aquarium with adjacent restaurant were proposed) not more
industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been learned (or remembered?). 1 am not against all development, but am against
development that I consider unsustainable and disproportionate. For example, I fully support the Greyhope Bay project which
envisaged a visitor centre to view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of development
that should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

“Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural environments, community
cohesion and erime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain bikers, anglers, surfers, kite flvers
ete. This area will be completely inaccessible if new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by
the Harbour Board) little work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL
population who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight. For generations, people with
local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will
people pay their respects in the future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing?
The harbour board have been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to provide an
adequate response and this aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application. I am concerned about the proximity of
the harbour development and the construction areas to four play areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground,
basketball court and play park) in St Fittick’s Community Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are much more
susceptible to air pollution than adults and I find it unacceptable that construction sites (which are expected to generate a lot of
dust) are to be sited next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that some of the areas earmarked for construction
sites have been recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

Tam very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during the operation of this new
harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north junction with Greyhope
Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-
runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many
pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along
with the increased traffic, significantly worsens the risk of accident. During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-
quarter width Coast Road and have to negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays
and potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fall-back plan if for example, the bridge is
damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe
again? For safety reasons, I would ask that no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential streets in Torry. Also, these
additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Farm. This facility is frequented by families and 1 feel that an increase in traffic will be
detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young children. Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according
to Aberdeen City Council - if traffic routed this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock. Wellington
Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional residences are being built at its southern end in
the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue. Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry

1

Page 115



and Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems worse, Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and 1
cannot see an easy solution. During construction and operation, 1 would request that strict mitigation measures are emploved to
ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, induoding Victoria Read. The harbour board also claims that it
wants to atiract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that 40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers.
Which routes would these take? The same as the TIGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as
described above. There has been mention of ferries nsing the new harbour. I would be concerned if ferries were to use the harbour,
primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and Shetland ferries both earry around
140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route recommended for HGVs"Or\muldllm use the already congested
residential routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go ahead, I would recommend that no
passenger ferries are permitted to use it. The harbour board also propose to dose Grevhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to
the Coast Road for 18 months. I find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Grevhope Road
(i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width road narmmngtosmglemrmgewa\
in places due to landslips undermining it in recent vears. This will place additional siress on this already weakened road, increasing
the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the section of Grevhope Road left open does fail,
how will people (and emergency vehicles) access the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse? Within
the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood and that there is no history of
landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during
storms in December 2013 /January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just along the
coastal path (about 100 metres after the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at around the same time. 1 am concerned that as
the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this could lead to further landslides and potentially destabilise
this section of Grevhope Road. As blasting is planned, 1 expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences
and buildings to ensure that any damage is minimised. 1 would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to minimise
disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether this be during construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s Church (B-listed) and from Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St
Fittick™s in particular will be very badly affected and 1 cannot see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this
iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s will be very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary”™
construction areas. I am very concerned about the effect this will have on this vulnerable building. The scale of this development is
huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true scale of the development has not been accurately reflected in the
glossy literature produced by the harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area and
this harbour development will result in our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry, congested
roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, mcludmg the Walker Park will be taken up by
temporary construction/lavdown areas, further disadvantaging the local community. There appears to be little information on
landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have
accurate illustration and confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

I am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the construction noise from this development
will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it’s stated that our “bottle nose dolphin
is assumed to be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during the construction phase”. I am concerned as if the dolphins are
displaced for the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility that they might never come back. In addition, 1 am
concerned about the physiological effects that drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine
mammals. The dolphins have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphin watch programme organised
by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area. Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its
migration disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee. These are already critically
endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon migration patterns could be
disastrous. The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob them of their food
sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them. Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay
according to the EIA. The development of a new harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them. Three rare plants of national
importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge. This development threatens these plants. There must be a
robust plan in place and this must be effectively implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been
damaged by some of the ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed by the waves. The construction
of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to
create the harbour would encourage “back flow” of material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result
in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the
consequent production of toxic, smelly hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the two burns in the Environmental Impact
Assessment appears to be incomplete — I consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5": again, 1
find this lack of robust data unacceptable. I would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of
pollutants in the harbour and the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken. In order to meet the
requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities must carry out their statutory functions to
prevent deterioration and to improve the water environment. T would expect that this development would only be given the go
ahead if it could be proven bevond reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect on water quality,
otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this directive and River Basin Management Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT
Noise
The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle reversing alarms and work when
loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient to
waken local residents. As mitigation, I would strongly suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the harbour) be

2

Page 116



mmwmmMMamm@ememmmlmmm
Mmhuhb.m&e'mdmmmﬁm&em-mhMWw
improved soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?
Smell and fumes
Imﬂmmﬂ&mmhwmmdmmﬂﬂ&utmmmﬂﬂmmm&
m.mm&wmwmh%hm&mhwmmmuﬁrwmwdesurve
hha&mmwmmm.ﬁqﬁmdﬂhmm&m&mwm

and the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance is not

Lights -
Tbemwﬁglusintbeptuposeddﬂdnpmemmmw%_feﬁhigh.Imld'cxpect&matlhevayleastmbedimdiomland
dﬁnmﬁ:letnmdm:ﬁstmhmutolncalteddm&lmﬁdwﬁhhaﬁkﬂmamwﬁy&qmﬂbbemhigh.m
mumwmmmﬁmmmmmﬂmmﬁ

Kind regards,

Jan Stewart

Page 117



Mrs Joyce Mckay
30 Tullos Crescent
Torry

Aberdeen

ABI11 8IW

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

I am a resident of Torry I reside at and would like to object to the proposal to build a new
harbour in the Bay of Nigg Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Torry
people has been shown to be worse than many other arcas of city — this development will not
help this as there is a lot of research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the
health and wellbeing of the local community. In addition, a recent research paper (* see details
below) provides evidence that accessible, green spaces also contribute to more social cohesion
and significantly lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for
local people which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its
own large park or similar facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get
away from the hustle and bustle and hear nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than
the noises of industry, traffic and other people.

The “land take” associated with this development seems to have been ereeping further and
further up St Fittick’s Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and
what land could be at potential risk in the future as I strongly feel that this has not be clearly
communicated. Many people seem completely unaware that the golf practice area would
virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development
ofthe area, by strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Torry’s green
space, such as the recently-restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelmin g
message from residents was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time
an aquarium with adjacent restaurant were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from
this exercise not been learned (or remembered?).

I am not against all development, but am against development that 1 consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, I fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a
visitor centre to view the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the
kind of development that should be encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

*Netta Weinstein ef al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with
natural environments, community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES
The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain

Page 118



bikers, anglers, kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This arca will be completely inaccessible if
new harbour goes ahead. From the Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour
Board) little work seems to have been undertaken to establish how the area is used and viewed
by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this development. This to me is an
unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay
of Nigg (the area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in
the future when the bay is inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security
fencing? The harbour board have been asked about this previously at meetings of Torry
Community Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response and this aspect does not
appear lo feature in their planning application.

I am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas to
four play areas for children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and
playpark) in St Fittick's Community Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are
much more susceptible to air pollution than adults and I find it unacceptable that construction
sites (which are expected to generate a lot of dust) are to be sited next to these play facilities. It
is also disappointing to note that some of the areas earmarked for construction sites have been
recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION
I'am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction
and during the operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick’s Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club
to its north junction with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a
three-quarter width road, already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also
frequently used by pedestrians and people accessing the golf course. If this development goes
ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked to the Bay of Ni gg could instead use this
route for a leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the increased tra [fic, significantly
worsens the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have
to negotiate the tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays
and potentially damage to the bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan
if for example, the bridge is damaged by a heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will
HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is declared safe again? For safety reasons, |
would ask that.no harbour HGVs would be permitted to use the residential streets in Torry.

Also, these additional HGV's will pass close to Doonies Farm, This facility is frequented by
families and I feel that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the
farm, particularly young children.

Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic
routed this way as suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridlock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional

residences are being built at its southern end in the Cove arca which will exacerbate this issue.
Various high-density housing has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and

Page 119



Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems worse. Harbour traffic will only add to
these congestion problems and I cannot sce an easy solution.

During construction and operation, I would request that strict mitigation measures are employed
to ensure that harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that
40 luxury coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these
take? The same as the HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure
as described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. I would be concerned if ferries were
to use the harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example,
the Orkney and Shetland ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to
follow the same route recommended for HGVs? Or would they use the already congested
residential routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of accident? If this harbour does go
ahead, 1 would recommend that no passenger ferries are permitted to use it.

The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the
Coast Road for 18 months. I find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using
the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e. traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back)
which is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single carriageway in places due to landslips
undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this already weakened road,
increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this? If the
section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access
the Torry Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to
flood and that there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road
does flood - it flooded quite badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December
2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand, pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road.
Also, just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after the ruined bothy) there was a large
landslide at around the same time.

I am concerned that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this
could lead to further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As
blasting is planned, I expect that there will be robust seismic monitoring of ncarby residences
and buildings to ensure that any damage is minimised. I would also expect rigorous monitoring
of properties to minimise disturbance and damage caused by vibration, whether this be during
construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick’s Church (B-listed) and from
Girdleness Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick’s in particular will be very badly affected and |
cannot see any potential to mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In
addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s will be very closely surrounded on two sides by
“temporary” construction arcas. I am very concerned about the effect this will have on this
vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the
true scale of the development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced

Page 120



by the harbour board. The bay is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated arca i
and this harbour development will result in our residential community bein g almost completely

surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In addition, a lot of the remaining

green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary

construction/laydown areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board
propose to reinstate the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate
illustration and confirmation of these before any permissions are granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

I am worried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the
construction noise from this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the -
water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107 it’s stated that our “bottlenose dolphin is assumed to be
displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay arca during the construction phase”. I am concemed as

if the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three years) there is a possibility

that they might never come back. In addition, I am concerned about the physiological effects

that drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals.

The dolphins have in recent years, proved o be a positive asset for Torry, with the

Dolphinwatch programme organised by the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atlantic salmon could have its mi gration
disrupted which could impact on life cycle of freshwater pearl mussel colonies in River Dee.
These are already critically endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so
even a small impact on salmon migration patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would
rob them of their food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace
them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a
new harbour is unlikely to have a positive effect on them,

Three rare plants of national importance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved
sedge. This development threatens these plants, There must be a robust plan in place and this
must be effectively implemented to ensure their ongoin ¢ survival. Their habitat has already
been damaged by some of the ground drilling works and associated vehicle movements
undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted burns discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly
dispersed by the waves. The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate,
therefore pollutants could build up in bay and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour
would encourage “backflow” of material from nearby outfalls that are rich in organic material,
This would result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and the potential for
anacrobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly
hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the two burns in the Environmental Impact Assessment
appears to be incomplete — I consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some
tables as “>5”: again, I find this lack of robust data unacceptable.

Page 121 |



[ would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants
in the harbour and the possibility of anacrobic respiration, if this has not already been
undertaken.

In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Dircctive (200/60/EC), responsible
authorities must carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the
water environment. I would expect that this development would only be given the go ahead if it
could be proven beyond reasonable doubt that the new harbour would not have a negative effect
on water quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant with the objectives of this
directive and River Basin Management Planning,

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle
reversing alarms and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is
especially troublesome during the night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As
mitigation, I would strongly suggest working hours (both construction and operation of the
bharbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends to give local residents
some respite. In addition, I would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the amount
of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved
soundproofing for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

I'would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no
smell and fumes issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the
odours from the Wastewater Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from
unpleasant odours. This harbour should not deal in any materials that have the potential to
create unpleasant odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be maintained in such a way that
smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently
amended their modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee
which “traps” odour and pollution in the Torry area. I do not believe that this microclimate
effect has been explored in the harbour board’s EIA. If this is the case, I strongly advise that this
effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. I would expect these at the
very least to be directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. I would also
like to ask is there a reason why they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected,
active areas of the harbour rather than being “always on™?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City
Council and several partner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to
improve its appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

Page 122



I hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay
forms an important part of our local environment and its loss would lead to the fragmentation of
natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY
It is my opinion that aspects of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy
(SPP) and Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement.

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be carly, meaningful
and proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged”.
Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are
taken with communities ...”

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local
population does not have English as their first language, but not one document has been
produced in an alternative language, effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals
from the planning process. There are no statements in other languages on any of the documents
advising how people can source copies in their native language cither. 1 feel that this is
discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a matter of
urgency.

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leaflet drop has been carried out to
local homes — I consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet
drops have recently been undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and
Scottish Water (upgrading works at Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent
for this.

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is
not circulated in the Torry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate
and meaningful consultation with locals, -

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk
about the Bay of Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given
ample notice the harbour board did not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead.
[ consider this lack of engagement with locals to be unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is
not to allow development at any cost”.

I strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local
community and that our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for
this development was made when oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximatel y
$40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, I believe that the economic case needs to be
revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this new harbour is constructed
it could well be a “white elephant™ and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.

The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the
community, this development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been
given little opportunity to have our voices heard.

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting
information that describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

Page 123



The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view,
misleading (and city council planning officials have the same view according lo an article in the
Evening I'xpress). They secem to disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on
all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare blocks, security fencing ete) that will be associated
with a new harbour. This must be rectified as a matter of urgency so that the public and
councillors have a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so
the public have the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four
volumes and is estimated to weigh 25kg, I feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour
board arrange a public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the devel opment. To date,
this has not been done and I consider this a serious oversight. [Tow do people know all the
implications of these proposals without having the chance to discuss them meani ngfully? |
would strongly recommend that a public meeting is organised as a matter of urgency to allow a
true debate on the development. 1 think this is a wholly proportionate response 10 a development
costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not
result in a deficit of that provision within the local area ...”

[fthis development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural
space in the community. | feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest businesses in the
world, having been founded in 1136. 1 therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to
hopefully/possibly attract some decommissioning work. As decommissioni ng work was
predicted by Oil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30 years, this seems an incredibly short active
lifespan when compared to the longevity of the Harbour Board. 1 would have thought that they
of all people would have avoided such a large development with such a limited lifespan.

['am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event. As recent
cvents in Cumbria have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year” events in just 10
years. With climate change now widely aceepted I would have thought that a much more robust
construction would have been recommended.

Various sites of archacological interest have been identified both on and offshore in the Bay. 1 i
would expeet that these be fully catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to
construction.

I'was disappointed with the "Socio Economics" chapter of the EIA. There appears to have been
very little work done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-local,
“formal” visitors to the area (for example many informal visitors come to the bay to birdwatch —
as the area is renowned for its passage migrants — and to spot dolphins). I feel this chapter does
not reflect a true picture of how the bay is utilised by locals and informal visitors and to me this
is a glaring omission in this report. Sadly, it seems that more attention has been given to the
animals in the bay, rather than the humans who will have to live next to this development. |

Yours faithfull

Page 124



PI

From: Colette Snelling [ GGG

Sent: 15 December 2015 21:55

To: ms.marinelicensing@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; harbourorders@scotland.gsi.gov.uk; PI
Subject: BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

Dear SirlMadam

BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

| am a resident of Torry and would like to object to the proposal to build 2 new harbour in the Bay of Nigg
Aberdeen. My reasons for objecting are listed below.

NEEDS OF THE AREA

There is limited open green space in Torry that is accessible to the public. The health of Tomry people has been
shown to be worse than many other areas of city — this development will not help this as there is a lot of
research evidence that accessible, green spaces are beneficial to the health and wellbeing of the local
community. In addition, a recent research paper (* see details below) provides evidence that accessible, green
spaces also contribute to more social cohesion and significantly lower crime rates.

The Bay of Nigg and its surrounding area provide a valuable free, accessible leisure resource for local people
which cannot be replaced. Unlike many areas of the city, Torry does not have its own large park or similar
facility. The bay is one of the few areas in Torry where you can get away from the hustle and bustle and hear
nothing but the natural sound of the waves, rather than the noises of industry, traffic and other people.

The "land take™ associated with this development seems to have been creeping further and further up St Fittick’s
Road. We need to be absolutely clear exactly what land will be lost and what land could be at potential risk in
the future as | strongly feel that this has not be clearly communicated. Many people seem completely unaware
that the golf practice area would virtually disappear and that Walker Park will be taken over as a temporary
construction area.

Also, if this development goes ahead, it could open the door to further unwelcome development of the area, by
strengthening the case for new roads to be built across more of Tormry’s green space, such as the recently-
restored wetlands and in close proximity to Tullos Primary School.

Many years ago there was a "Planning for Real" event held in Torry. The overwhelming message from residents
was that we needed attractions to draw people into the area (at that time an aquarium with adjacent restaurant
were proposed) not more industry. Have the lessons from this exercise not been leamed (or remembered?).

| am not against all development, but am against development that | consider unsustainable and
disproportionate. For example, | fully support the Greyhope Bay project which envisaged a visitor centre to view
the dolphins with an attached coffee shop. This seems to me to be just the kind of development that should be
encouraged in the area instead of heavy industry.

*Netta Weinstein et al “Seeing the community for the trees: The links among contact with natural environments,
community cohesion and crime” Bioscience, November 2015

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING USES

The Bay of Nigg is already used by ramblers, birdwatchers, paragliders, dog walkers, mountain bikers, anglers,
kayakers, surfers, kite flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible if new harbour goes ahead. From the
Environmental Impact Assessment (prepared by the Harbour Board) little work seems to have been undertaken
to establish how the area is used and viewed by the LOCAL population who will have to live next to this
development. This to me is an unacceptable oversight.

For generations, people with local connections have scattered their loved one’s ashes in the Bay of Nigg (the
area has a strong seafaring background). Where will people pay their respects in the future when the bay is
inaccessible and surrounded by nine and a half foot high security fencing? The harbour board have been asked
about this previously at meetings of Torry Community Council, but have yet to provide an adequate response
and this aspect does not appear to feature in their planning application.

| am concerned about the proximity of the harbour development and the construction areas to four play areas for
children (the skateboard ramp, adventure playground, basketball court and playpark) in St Fittick's Community
Park. Research has amply demonstrated that children are much more susceptible to air poliution than adults
and | find it unacceptable that construction sites (which are expected to generate a lot of dust) are to be sited
next to these play facilities. It is also disappointing to note that some of the areas earmarked for construction
sites have been recently planted with native trees.

PROVISION OF SUITABLE ACCESS AND TRANSPORTATION

| am very worried about the additional traffic that will be created both during the construction and during the
operation of this new harbour.

Road safety is already an issue on the length of St Fittick's Road from the Nigg Bay Golf Club to its north

1

Page 125



junciion with Greyhope Road as there is no pavement for pedestrians. This is a three-quarter width road,
already heavily used by HGVs and rush hour “rat-runners”, but also frequently used by pedestrians and people
accessing the golf course. If this development goes ahead, many pedestrians who would have walked 1o the
Bay of Nigg could instead use this route for 2 leisure walk to the river/coast which along with the increased
traffic, significantly worsens the risk of accident.

During construction, a large number of HGVs will use three-quarter width Coast Road and have to negotiate the
tight bends at the railway bridge — this will lead to further congestion, delays and potentially damage to the
bridge (either from overuse or accident). What is the fallback plan if for example, the bridge is damaged by a
heavy vehicle? Where will traffic be re-routed or will HGV movement be suspended until the bridge is declared
safe again? For safety reasons, | would ask that no harbour HGVs would be permitied to use the residential
streets in Tomry.

Also, these additional HGVs will pass close to Doonies Famm. This facility is frequented by families and | feel
that an increase in traffic will be detrimental to the safety of visitors to the farm, particularly young children.
Hareness Roundabout is already at capacity according to Aberdeen City Council — if traffic routed this way as
suggested by Harbour Board, this could well lead to gridiock.

Wellington Road is already congested and has poor air quality. A large number of additional residences are
being built at its southem end in the Cove area which will exacerbate this issue. Various high-density housing
has been recently completed or is planned for Torry and Abbotswell which will also make these traffic problems
worse. Harbour traffic will only add to these congestion problems and | cannot see an easy solution.

During construction and operation, | would request that strict mitigation measures are employed to ensure that
harbour traffic does not use residential roads in Torry, including Victoria Road.

The harbour board also claims that it wants to attract cruise ships. In the EIA, it is proposed that 40 luxury
coaches would be needed to transport cruise passengers. Which routes would these take? The same as the
HGVs? This would carry the same risk to the Coast Road infrastructure as described above.

There has been mention of ferries using the new harbour. | would be concemed if ferries were to use the
harbour, primarily because of the additional traffic they would generate. For example, the Orkney and Shetland
ferries both carry around 140 cars. Would these cars be expected to follow the same route recommended for
HGVs? Or would they use the already congested residential routes through Torry, thereby increasing the risk of
accident? If this harbour does go ahead, | would recommend that no passenger ferries are permitted to use it.
The harbour board also propose to close Greyhope Road from Girdleness Lighthouse to the Coast Road for 18
months. | find this unacceptable as this effectively doubles the traffic using the remainder of Greyhope Road (i.e.
traffic heading east then having to U-turn and head back) which is a three-quarter width road narrowing to single
carriageway in places due to landslips undermining it in recent years. This will place additional stress on this
already weakened road, increasing the likelihood of further serious failure. What mitigation is proposed for this?
If the section of Greyhope Road left open does fail, how will people (and emergency vehicles) access the Torry
Battery and the houses adjacent to the Girdleness Lighthouse?

Within the Environmental Impact Assessment it's stated that Greyhope Road is not known to flood and that
there is no history of landslide. These statements are incorrect. Greyhope Road does flood - it flooded quite
badly next to the Bay Of Nigg car park during storms in December 2013/January 2014 when a lot of sand,
pebbles and debris were also deposited on the road. Also, just along the coastal path (about 100 metres after
the ruined bothy) there was a large landslide at around the same time.

| am concemed that as the Harbour Board intend to carry out rock blasting in this area, that this could lead to
further landslides and potentially destabilise this section of Greyhope Road. As blasting is planned, | expect that
there will be robust seismic monitoring of nearby residences and buildings to ensure that any damage is
minimised. | would also expect rigorous monitoring of properties to minimise disturbance and damage caused
by vibration, whether this be during construction or operation of the harbour.

VISUAL APPEARANCE

There will be a considerable impact on views from Old St Fittick's Church (B-listed) and from Girdleness
Lighthouse (A-listed). St Fittick's in particular will be very badly affected and | cannot see any potential to
mitigate the impact of the new harbour on this iconic building. In addition, it now appears that St Fittick’s will be
very closely surrounded on two sides by “temporary” construction areas. | am very concemed about the effect
this will have on this vulnerable building.

The scale of this development is huge - it takes up virtually all of the bay. In my opinion, the true scale of the
development has not been accurately reflected in the glossy literature produced by the harbour board. The bay
is one of the last natural green spaces in a densely-populated area and this harbour development will result in
our residential community being almost completely surrounded by industry, congested roads and the railway. In
addition, a lot of the remaining green space in Torry, including the Walker Park will be taken up by temporary
construction/laydown areas, further disadvantaging the local community.

There appears to be little information on landscaping proposals or how the harbour board propose to reinstate
the temporary construction/laydown areas — we need to have accurate illustration and confirmation of these
before any permissions are granted.

IMPACT ON NATURE

2

Page 126



| am woried about the proximity of the River Dee Special Area of Conservation as the construction noise from
this development will on occasion, travel several kilometres through the water. In the EIA Volume 4, page 107
it's stated that our “bottienose dolphin is assumed fo be displaced from the immediate Nigg Bay area during the
construction phase”. | am concemed as if the dolphins are displaced for the duration of construction (three
years) there is a possibility that they might never come back. In addition, | am concemed about the physiological
effects that drilling, blasting, piling and dredging will have on dolphins and other marine mammals. The dolphins
have in recent years, proved to be a positive asset for Torry, with the Dolphinwatch programme organised by
the RSPB acting as a showcase for the area.

Other marine life will also be affected, for example the Atiantic salmon could have its migration disrupted which
could impact on life cycle of freshwater peari mussel colonies in River Dee. These are already critically
endangered and under further pressure from filamentous algae so even a small impact on salmon migration
patterns could be disastrous.

The Bay of Nigg is also a valuable resource for birds, particularly ducks. The dredging would rob them of their
food sources and the disturbance caused by the construction could displace them.

Evidence of otters has also been found in the bay according to the EIA. The development of a new harbour is
unlikely to have a positive effect on them.

Three rare plants of national imporiance grow in the bay: sea pea, oyster plant and curved sedge. This
development threatens these plants. There must be a robust plan in place and this must be effectively
implemented to ensure their ongoing survival. Their habitat has already been damaged by some of the ground
drilling works and associated vehicle movements undertaken in the bay this summer.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

At the moment, two polluted bums discharge into bay, however this pollution is quickly dispersed by the waves.
The construction of the breakwaters would reduce this dilution rate, therefore pollutants could build up in bay
and its sediment. Also, dredging to create the harbour would encourage “backflow” of material from nearby
outfalls that are rich in organic material. This would result in increased Biological Oxygen Demand (BOD) and
the potential for anaerobic bacterial respiration in the harbour and the consequent production of toxic, smelly
hydrogen sulphide gas. Also the data on the two bums in the Environmental Impact Assessment appears to be
incomplete — | consider this unacceptable. In addition, the BOD is quoted in some tables as “>5™: again, | find
this lack of robust data unacceptable.

| would recommend that robust modelling be carried out on the potential build up of pollutants in the harbour and
the possibility of anaerobic respiration, if this has not already been undertaken.

In order to meet the requirements of the Water Framework Directive (200/60/EC), responsible authorities must
carry out their statutory functions to prevent deterioration and to improve the water environment. | would expect
that this development would only be given the go ahead if it could be proven beyond reasonable doubt that the
new harbour would not have a negative effect on water quality, otherwise this would appear to be non-compliant
with the objectives of this directive and River Basin Management Planning.

NUISANCES CAUSED BY THE DEVELOPMENT

Noise

The current harbour works 24/7 and there noticeable noise from this, particularly from vehicle reversing alarms
and work when loading/unloading containers as well as engine noise. This is especially troublesome during the
night when the noise is sufficient to waken local residents. As mitigation, | would strongly suggest working hours
(both construction and operation of the harbour) be confined to daylight hours with reduced hours at weekends
to give local residents some respite. In addition, | would request that robust measures be taken to minimise the
amount of noise transmitted from the development — perhaps landscaping measures or improved soundproofing
for homes adjacent to the bay?

Smell and fumes

| would expect that the strictest measures be rigorously enforced to ensure that there are no smell and fumes
issuing from the harbour. The people of Balnagask have had to live with the odours from the Wastewater
Treatment Plant for 10 years and deserve to have a life free from unpleasant odours. This harbour should not
deal in any materials that have the potential to create unpleasant odours/fumes and the harbour itself should be
maintained in such a way that smell/fume nuisance is not generated there either.

It should be noted that Scottish Water on the advice of Professor Rob Jackson have recently amended their
modelling systems to take account of a “barrier” effect created by the River Dee which “traps” odour and
pollution in the Torry area. | do not believe that this microclimate effect has been explored in the harbour board's
EIA. If this is the case, | strongly advise that this effect is examined as a matter of urgency.

Lights

The tower lights in the proposed development are over 80 feet high. | would expect these at the very least to be
directional and dimmable to reduce disturbance to local residents. | would also like to ask is there a reason why
they need to be so high. Could lighting be confined to selected, active areas of the harbour rather than being
“always on™?

VIEW OF STATUTORY AND OTHER CONSULTEES

There is an old information board in the Bay of Nigg car park, erected by Aberdeen City Council and several

3

Page 127



pariner organisations. Part of this sign reads:

For these reasons it is important to protect this area of countryside from being built upon, to improve iis
appearance and to offer everyone the opportunity to enjoy it.

| hope and trust that the council keeps this particular promise about the Bay of Nigg. The bay forms an important
part of our local environment and its loss would lead fo the fragmentation of natural habitats.

SCOTTISH PLANNING POLICY

It is my opinion that aspecits of this application are not in the spirit of Scottish Planning Policy (SPP) and
Planning Advice Note 3/2010 Community Engagement. :

SPP, paragraph 6 reads: “Such engagement between stakeholders should be early, meaningful and
proportionate. Innovative approaches, tailored to the unique circumstances are encouraged’.

Paragraph 7 reads: “... developers should ensure that appropriate and proportionate steps are taken with
communities ..."

Torry will be the area most impacted by this development. Approximately 15% of the local population does not
have English as their first language, but not one document has been produced in an alternative language,
effectively excluding a significant proportion of locals from the planning process. There are no statements in
other languages on any of the documents advising how people can source copies in their native language
either. | feel that this is discrimination against this section of the local population and should be addressed as a
matter of urgency. '

Many locals are unaware of the plans and their scale. No leafiet drop has been carried out to local homes — |
consider this unacceptable for a project estimated to cost £320 million. Leaflet drops have recently been
undertaken by Aberdeen City Council (Energy from waste plant) and Scottish Water (upgrading works at
Wastewater Treatment Plant) so there is ample precedent for this.

Although the development was advertised in a local free newspaper (Aberdeen Citizen) this is not circulated in
the Tormry area which demonstrates a lack of consideration towards appropriate and meaningful consultation with
locals.

Also, concerned Torry residents appeared on a local radio show on 4 December 2015 to talk about the Bay of
Nigg (show was scheduled to last one hour). Despite being invited and given ample notice the harbour board did
not attend in person but submitted a brief statement instead. | consider this lack of engagement with locals to be
unacceptable.

SPP Paragraph 28 reads: “The aim is to achieve the right development in the right place; it is not to allow
development at any cost’.

| strongly believe that the risks of this development solidly outweigh the benefits for the local community and that
our voices have not been heard. In addition, much of the economic case for this development was made when
oil was over $100 a barrel. With oil now being approximately $40 a barrel and predicted to decrease further, |
believe that the economic case needs to be revisited at the very least and revised as necessary, otherwise if this
new harbour is constructed it could well be a “white elephant” and we will have lost our bay for no good reason.
The Bay of Nigg is one of the last natural, accessible green spaces in Torry. For many in the community, this
development is inappropriate in its location and scale, however we have been given little opportunity to have our
voices heard. g :

SPP Paragraph 35 reads: “.. applicants should provide good quality and timely supporting information that
describes ... the implications of the proposal”.

The images of the development that have been circulated in the local press are in my view, misleading (and city
coungcil planning officials have the same view according to an article in the Evening Express). They seem to
disguise the true scale of this development and lack detail on all the infrastructure (e.g. car parks, welfare
blocks, security fencing etc) that will be associated with a new harbour. This must be rectified as a matter of
urgency so that the public and councillors have a true picture of the impact of this development.

The Environmental Impact Assessment was only made publicly available in early November, so the public have
the statutory minimum of 42 days to examine it. As this document is four volumes and is estimated to weigh
25kg, | feel that this is unacceptable.

At the October meeting of Torry Community Council, it was recommended that the harbour board arrange a
public meeting to enable the public to fully debate the development. To date, this has not been done and |
consider this a serious oversight. How do people know all the implications of these proposals without having the
chance to discuss them meaningfully? | would strongly recommend that a public meeting is organised as a
matter of urgency to allow a true debate on the development. | think this is a wholly proportionate response to a
development costing £320 million.

SPP Paragraph 230 reads: “Development of land allocated as green infrastructure ... will not result in a deficit of
that provision within the local area ..."

If this development goes ahead it will have a huge impact on the amount of accessible natural space in the
community. | feel that this is in contravention of paragraph 230.

CLOSING REMARKS

Aberdeen Harbour Board are keen to advertise themselves as one of the oldest businesses in the world, having
been founded in 1136. | therefore find it odd that they want to build a facility to hopefully/possibly attract some

4

Page 128



decommissioning work. As decommissioning work was predicted by Oil and Gas UK in 2013 to last for 30 years,
this seems an incredibly short active lifespan when compared to the longevity of the Harbour Board. | would
WWMMddWMMMMamWWMaWM
| am surprised that the harbour is planned to withstand a 1 in 100 year storm event. As recent events in Cumbria
have shown, they have experienced two "1 in 100 year™ events in just 10 years. With climate change now widely
accepted | would have thought that 2 much more robust construction would have been recommended.
VM&BJM&HWMWWMmWMMMBﬂJMQﬁM
these be fully catalogued and documented before they are lost forever to construction.
ldeWMMM’WMMEHMwwmmMImm
done on how locals use the bay, instead the chapter seems to focus on non-ocal, “formal” visitors to the area
(Mexznpbnmﬁionmlvidbmmbﬂehaybb&dmﬁn—asﬂemhmmedhriﬁmge
nigrants—andhspotdoums).Ifeelﬁisdmpte:doesnotreﬁedahuepichneoﬂnnﬂnebayisuﬁﬁsedby
locals and informal visitors and to me this is a glaring omission in this report. Sadly, it seems that more attention
hasbeengivenmtheanimalshlhebay,mﬁiermmmelumanswhowilrmvetolivenextlnﬂisdevebmlem
Yours faithfully :

Colette Snelling

Page 129



P

From: © . I
Sent:- . . .' - 15 December 2015 20:50. . :
To: B S ms. mannellcenslng@scotland gsi.gov. uk harbourorders@scotland gsi.gov.uk; PI

Subject: S _ BAY OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOUR DEVELOPMENT

- Dear Sit/Madam

BA_Y OF NIGG, ABERDEEN - PROPOSED HARBOU'R DEVEI_.OPIVIENT -

I Ilve nearby on Polmuir Road - ‘ .
and would like to object to the proposal to burld a new harbour in the Bay of ngg Aberdeen Some of my reasons
for objectlng are below ' : ‘ : :

" The Bay of ngg and rts surroundmg area provrde a valuable Ielsure resource for local people whrch cannot be -
replaced. i personally use the area for walking, running, surfing and fishing and feel that itis a, unigue and |mportant _
area of Aberdeen in partacular for surfmg this: area is.a popular and hlgh qualrty spot on thrs stretch of coast

The S o y : - - :
Bay of Nigg is used by ramblers birdwatchers, paragllders dog walkers mountaln blkers kayakers surfers klte
flyers etc. This area will be completely inaccessible |f the new harbour goes ahead. ' '
The bayis one ofthe last natural green spaces ina densely—pOpulated area.

. Best rega rds

Erlend
Inkster

~95 Polmuir Roadv
‘Aberdeen’
ABI11 7S

Page 130



Doonies Farm
Coast Road
Nigg
Aberdeen

ABI23LT

24f11/2015

Dear Sir,

| am writing to comment on the planning application lodged by Aberdeen Harbour Board,
application reference 151742,

My wife and | are the tenants of Doonies Farm and we have a 15 year lease with Aberdeen City
Council, commencing 2010, to operate the farm as a visitor attraction and rare breeds farm. The
loss of 8.63 hectares of land to accommodate the construction of the southern breakwater and
associated infrastructure will result in Doonies farm becoming a non-viable business. We will have
no alternative but to cease operations and close the farm down.

Barton Willmore continually refers to the land in question as part of Loirston Country Park. | am not
aware that Loirston Countnr Park was ever formally adopted by Aberdeen City Council but in any
case, in the 22 years that { have been associated with the farm the fields have always been part of
Doonies farm.

The harbour development will have the following financial consequences for our business;

1. Loss of land on which to make our winter fodder and loss of land for grazing animals. The expense
of buying fodder, plus the cost of transporting it to the farm for up to 30 weeks of the year is
prohibitive.

2. Loss of annual agricultural subsidy.

3. A forced reduction in the amount of livestock we can keep and subsequently a large reduction in
the amount of income we can generéte.

The second issue we have with the planning application concerns the proposed off road cycle path
improvements as stated on page 12 of the Final Planning Statement document.

1 fail to see how you can “improve” something that does not exist. There is no off road cycle path to
improve. The cycle path uses the Coast Road. Thecreation of a new cycle track through the fields of




Doonies farm will create serious management issues for the fanm. There is only an indicative plan
shwown but | would bring to your attention the following points;

The path appears to go through field gateways
The path appears to utilise an existing farm vehidle track.
The path would cut off the water supply for livestock in the last field before the railway underpass.

The pzth re-joins the Coast Road at 2 point where there is 2 dip in the road as it approaches the busy
junction with Hareness Road. That part of the Coast Road is often in shade due to the railway
embanfoment and | predict that there will be a serious acddent, as oyclists emerge out of the railway
underpass onto the Coast Road.

ry final concern relates to the proposed resurfacing and “significant” improvements to the Coast
Road (volume 2 Environmental Statement, Chapter 18, Traffic and Transport). Any disruption to
vehide access to the farm for our customers during resurfacing work will have severe financial
implications for our business. Likewise any road widening along the part of the Coast Road that is
adjacent to the farm fields or entrance will be detrimental to the farm ( Design Statement, Final
Planning Statement 2.2). The car park is not large enough to accommodate ali the vehides at busy
fimes and any road widening will make the situation worse. Tractor and trailer access is required to
the stone bam and adjoining yard. Any loss of the concrete apron in front of the barn will mean that
the tractor would have to hold up traffic in order to access the only secure building on the farm.

| trust that these concerns will be addressed and action taken that will allow Doonies Farm to
continue operating for the benefit of the people of Aberdeen.

Yours sincerely,

Graham Lennox Debbie Lennox

Page 132



 Wilma Henderson -

- From: - S . webmaster@aberdeencity.gov.uk. -
. Sent:_ .03 December 2015 19: 28
To: AR P ‘
Subject: = - . Plannlng Comment for 151742
Categories: B . SmartSaved

Comment for Planning‘AppIication 151742 o e e .
Name : Aberdeen Civic Society - ‘ B ‘ T
. Address: c/oSLowste Avenue o T o '
~ Aberdeen ST R o
“ABL54TT .. . R o . ! L

J"Telephone . :
el S e :
Comment : Aberdeen Civic Society supports the appllcatlon for an ‘extension to the harbour. We do have concerns

. about how trafﬁc is gomg to be managed in the area and in th1s regard would wrsh to remain mvolved as proposals
are frrmed up.

haY . . 1 i

>

IMPORTANT NOTICE This e- manl (mcludmg any attachment to |t) is confrdentlal protected by copyright and may be

- prl\nleged The information contained in it should be used for its intended purposes only. If you receive this email in ‘
error, notify the sender by reply emall delete the received emall and do not make use of, disclose or copy-it. Whilst
we take reasonable precautlons to ensure that our emails are free from viruses, we cannot be respon5|ble for'any

. - viruses transmittéd with this email and recommend that you subject any incoming email to your ownvirus checking
- procedures. Unless related to Council busmess the opinions expressed in this.email are those of the sender and

they do not necessarily constitute those of Aberdeen City Council. Unless we expressly say otherwise in this email- Qr

its attachments, heither this email nor its attachments create, form part of or vary any contractual or umlateral

obllgatlon Aberdeen Clty Council's mcomlng and outgorng emall is SIijECt o regular monltormg




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



	Agenda
	2 Land at Bay of Nigg, Coast Road/Greyhope Road, Torry - National Development Comprising Construction of New Infrastructure to Facilitate the Creation of a New Deep Water Harbour
	ALL LETTERS - Redacted


